
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
SEPTEMBER 18, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

September 18, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Jack Mannschreck – Big Beaver 
United Methodist Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Service Commendation – Charles Barnes............................................................ 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, PA 110 of 2006, Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (File No: ZOTA 224) – Articles II, III, X, XXXIV, XXXV, and XLIII 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment  (File Number: ZOTA 215-C) – Articles XLIII 
and XLIV, Pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals and Results or 
Commercial Vehicle Visual Survey 2 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 2 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 3 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 3 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 3 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 3 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Outdoor Lighting 
Maintenance Contract .......................................................................................... 3 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 06-9 – 
Industrial Row Drive and Meijer Drive Reconstruction and Water Main 
Reconstruction...................................................................................................... 4 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Common Ground .................................................................................................. 4 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Emergency 
Medical Services .................................................................................................. 4 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Pavement 
Seam and Fracture Sealing Program ................................................................... 5 

E-5 Rescind Partial Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Janitorial Services 5 

E-6 Application for Transfer of Class C-SDM License for Ruth’s Chris Steak House 6 

E-7 Private Agreement for Beaumont Hospital Project No. 06.917.3 6 

E-8 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Ltd. v. City of Troy et al 6 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 7 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 7 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board; Historic District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; Parks 
& Recreation Board; and Troy Daze Committee 7 



 

 

F-2 Amendments to Chapter 42 – Flood Plain Management as Required by FEMA for 
Participation in National Flood Insurance Program 9 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 10 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 10 

G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted 10 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 10 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 10 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 10 

I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 10 

REPORTS: 10 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 10 

a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – June 1, 2006............................ 10 
b) Historic District Study Committee/Final – June 6, 2006...................................... 10 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – August 2, 2006 .......... 10 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – August 2, 2006 .......... 10 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – September 7, 2006 .................. 10 

J-2 Department Reports: 10 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of August, 2006 ......... 10 
b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-

Thumb Auctioneering, LLC – July/August, 2006................................................. 10 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 10 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 10 

J-5  Calendar 10 

J-6  Retirement System – Summary Annual Report to Members – December 31, 2005 10 



 

 

STUDY ITEMS: 10 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 10 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 11 

CLOSED SESSION: 11 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 11 

ADJOURNMENT 11 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 11 

Monday, September 25, 2006 Regular City Council.............................................. 11 
Monday, October 2, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................... 11 
Monday, October 16, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................. 11 
Monday, October 23, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................. 11 
Monday, November 13, 2006 Regular City Council............................................... 11 
Monday, November 20, 2006 Regular City Council............................................... 11 
Monday, November 27, 2006 Regular City Council............................................... 11 
Monday, December 4, 2006 Regular City Council................................................. 11 
Monday, December 18, 2006 Regular City Council............................................... 11 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Jack Mannschreck – Big 
Beaver United Methodist Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) Service Commendation – Charles Barnes     
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, PA 110 of 2006, Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (File No: ZOTA 224) – Articles II, III, X, XXXIV, XXXV, and XLIII 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Articles II (Planning Commission, Changes and Amendments to the Zoning 
Ordinance, and Approvals), III (Applications and Procedures) X (One-Family Residential 
Districts), XXXIV (Residential Development Options), XXXV (Planned Unit Development) and 
XLIII (Board Of Zoning Appeals) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance be AMENDED to read as 
written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 224), City Council Public 
Hearing Draft, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment  (File Number: ZOTA 215-C) – Articles XLIII 
and XLIV, Pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals and Results of 
Commercial Vehicle Visual Survey    

 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Articles XLIII (Board of Zoning Appeals) and XLIV (City Council Appeals) of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215-C), dated June 26, 2006, as recommended by the 
Planning Commission and City Management and with the INSERTION of “or deny” AFTER 
“approve” in Section 43.74.00. 
 
Suggested Substitute Amendment 
Resolution #2006-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the preceding resolution for Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File 
Number: ZOTA 215-C) – Articles XLIII and XLIV, Pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking 
Appeals be SUBSTITUTED with the following: 
 

RESOLVED, That Articles XLIII (Board of Zoning Appeals) and XLIV (City Council Appeals) 
of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215-C), City Council Public Hearing Draft, as 
recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Staff is DIRECTED to work with the Planning 
Commission to PREPARE a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to Section 40.66.00 
revising the provisions for the allowances for the outdoor parking of commercial vehicles 
in residential districts in line with the results of the commercial vehicle survey provided by 
City Council. 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of September 11, 
2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Outdoor Lighting 

Maintenance Contract  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish all labor, tools, equipment, transportation services, and 
traffic controls to provide two-year requirements of street, parking lot, and athletic field light 
maintenance and repair with an option to renew for one (1) additional year is hereby 
AWARDED to the low bidder, Allied Signs, Inc., of Clinton Township, at unit prices and 
discounts contained in the bid tabulation opened August 23, 2006, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 06-9 – Industrial 
Row Drive and Meijer Drive Reconstruction and Water Main Reconstruction  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 06-9 for Industrial Row Drive and Meijer Drive Reconstruction 
and Water Main Reconstruction, be AWARDED to Six-S, Inc., 2210 Scott Lake Road, 
Waterford, MI, 48328 for their low bid of $3,283,950.40; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 15% of the total project cost. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 

Common Ground  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds budgeted in the 2006/2007 fiscal year to Common 
Ground to provide community service programs to the residents of the City of Troy in the 
amount of $2,100.00 is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Emergency Medical 

Services  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
 
WHEREAS, On June 2, 2003, a three-year contract to provide emergency medical services 
with an option to renew for three additional one-year periods was awarded to the low bidder 
submitting the best value proposal, Alliance Mobile Health, for an estimated cost of 
$463,623.00 per year at unit prices contained in the tabulation opened January 31, 2003 
(Resolution #2003-06-281); and 
 
WHEREAS, Alliance Mobile Health has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract for 
three years under the same terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract for three additional 
years is hereby EXERCISED with Alliance Mobile Health of Rochester Hills to provide 
Emergency Medical Services for an estimated total cost of $500,000.00 per year under the 
same pricing structure, terms, and conditions as the original contract to expire September 30, 
2009. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Pavement Seam 
and Fracture Sealing Program  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
 
WHEREAS, On October 18, 2004, a contract to provide for a Pavement Seam and Fracture 
Sealing Program with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods was awarded 
to the low bidder, Scodeller Construction, Inc., of South Lyon, MI, for an estimated cost of 
$657,500.00; and if changes in the quantity of work were required, either additive or deductive, 
such changes were authorized in an amount not to exceed 25% of the contract total per year 
(Resolution #2004-10-546-E7);  
 
WHEREAS, On September 12, 2005, the first of two (2) one-year options to renew the contract 
under the same prices, terms, and conditions was approved and expired June 30, 2006 
(Resolution #2005-09-416-E4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, Scodeller Construction, Inc., has agreed to exercise the second one-year option to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2004 season; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby EXERCISED 
with Scodeller Construction, Inc., to provide a pavement seam and fracture-sealing program 
within the City of Troy for an estimated cost of $500,000.00, at unit prices contained on the bid 
tabulation opened September 29, 2004, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting with the contract expiring June 30, 2007; and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, If changes in the quantity of work are required either additive or 
deductive, such changes are AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total 
contract cost or $125,000.00 and within budgetary limitations. 
 
E-5 Rescind Partial Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Janitorial Services   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
 
WHEREAS, On August 1, 2005, Troy City Council exercised and approved the option to renew 
the janitorial services contract for two (2) additional years with Road Runr Maintenance, 
American Cleaning, Elite Maintenance, and This is It! Quality Cleaning under the same contract 
terms and conditions expiring October 30, 2007 (Resolution # 2005-08-375-E-4a); and   
 
WHEREAS, Elite Maintenance has defaulted on the contract due to their exodus from the State 
of Michigan;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract to provide janitorial services for Groups 2 
and 4, the DPW facilities and Fire halls, be RESCINDED with prejudice from Elite Maintenance, 
and RE-AWARDED to the next lowest acceptable bidders, American Cleaning of Macomb 
Township, MI and Road Runr Maintenance of Pontiac, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened September 23, 2003, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring October 30, 2007.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

 
E-6 Application for Transfer of Class C-SDM License for Ruth’s Chris Steak House   
 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from R.C.S.H. Operations, L.L.C. (A Louisiana Limited Liability 
Company), to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C-SDM licensed business with dance permit, 
located at 755 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from Prime Steak-Troy, L.L.C. 
(A Louisiana Limited Liability Company), be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
an agreement with R.C.S.H. Operations, L.L.C. (A Louisiana Limited Liability Company), to 
transfer ownership of 2006 Class C-SDM licensed business with dance permit, located at 755 
W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from Prime Steak-Troy, L.L.C. (A Louisiana 
Limited Liability Company); and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-7 Private Agreement for Beaumont Hospital Project No. 06.917.3   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Beaumont Hospital, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of a public sidewalk and detention basin, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Ltd. v. City of Troy et al   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That the City Attorney’s Office is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to 
REPRESENT the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Karagiannakis 
and Garrett v. City of Troy et al, and to RETAIN any necessary expert witnesses and PAY any 
necessary litigation costs to adequately represent the City.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board; Historic District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; Parks 
& Recreation Board; and Troy Daze Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  
Appointed by Mayor (5) – 4 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/07 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 &/or 2 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 09/30/07 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07   (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07   (Student) 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 
NOTE: City Council Appointment Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
NOTE: City Council Appointment Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
NOTE: Troy Daze Committee to forward recommendation Term Expires 11/30/06 
 
Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
NOTE: Term reflects the correct unexpired term Unexpired Term 11/30/07 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Amendments to Chapter 42 – Flood Plain Management as Required by FEMA for 

Participation in National Flood Insurance Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council APPROVES the ATTACHED ordinance amendments to 
Chapter 42, Flood Plain Management, for the purpose of adopting the new Digital Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps (DFIRMS) that will become effective September 29, 2006 and to continue 
the City of Troy’s participation in the National Flood Insurance Program. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted   
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – June 1, 2006  
b) Historic District Study Committee/Final – June 6, 2006 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – August 2, 2006 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – August 2, 2006  
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – September 7, 2006 
 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of August, 2006  
b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb 

Auctioneering, LLC – July/August, 2006  
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 
         
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Retirement System – Summary Annual Report to Members – December 31, 2005 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 18, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, September 25, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 2, 2006.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 16, 2006........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, October 23, 2006........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 13, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 20, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 27, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 4, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 18, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



Service Commendation 
CHARLES BARNES 

 
WHEREAS, Chuck Barnes began his employment with the City of Troy as a Naturalist on July 6, 1981, building 
upon his prior experience in Berrien County, Michigan; and  
 
WHEREAS, He was promoted to Interpretive Programs Manager on January 10, 1998 and promoted again to 
Nature Center Manager on May 27, 2000; and 
 
WHEREAS, Over the course of his career Chuck established himself as a committed naturalist, receiving a number 
of awards and honors including the Best Interpretive Program Award from the National Association for Interpretation 
for his Junior Naturalist Club program and Conservation Educator of the Year in 2001 from the MICHIGAN United 
Conservation Club; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chuck was instrumental in the evolution of the Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center, including the funding, 
design and construction for the new building, the completion of the design phase for new exhibits and the 
development of the Nature Center’s Interpretive Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chuck retired from the City of Troy on September 1, 2006 after 25 years of dedicated service; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chuck will now have more time to spend with his wife Lorraine, father Charles Melvin and brother Kent, 
as well as take time to enjoy his many hobbies, including hunting, fly-fishing, birding, hiking, cooking gourmet meals, 
music, philosophy and tracing his family tree; and 
 
WHEREAS, During the course of his employment, Chuck has contributed many tireless hours of dedicated service 
to the City of Troy and its citizens, making a difference in the way citizens view the natural world and their role in it. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its 
appreciation to Chuck Barnes for his many contributions to the betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council on behalf of themselves, City management, and the citizens of the 
City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and happiness to Chuck during his retirement years. 
 
Presented this 18th day of September 2006. 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



DATE: September 12, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Public Hearing – Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Pa 110 of 

2006, Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File No: ZOTA 224) – Articles II, 
III, X, XXXIV, XXXV and XLIII 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of ZOTA 224 at the August 8, 2006 
Regular Meeting.  City Management concurs with the Planning Commission and 
recommends approval of ZOTA 224. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Public Act 110 of 2006, the new Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, became effective on 
July 1, 2006.  The purpose of the law is to establish consistent zoning procedures in all 
local units of government.  There were three (3) separate acts governing zoning in 
Michigan – the City and Village Zoning Act, the County Zoning Act and the Township 
Zoning Act.  The new law repeals the three (3) existing zoning acts and consolidates 
them into one single act.   
 
The new law retains many of the existing provisions of the City and Village Zoning Act.  
The attached memorandum, which was prepared by the City Attorney’s Office, analyzes 
the changes from the requirements of the City and Village Zoning Act.  While there are 
no substantial changes from the requirements of the City and Village Zoning Act 
required, some minor revisions to the Zoning Ordinance are required.  The most 
significant change is for increased public hearing notification requirements. 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: _____________________ _______ 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm Date 
 City Attorney 
 
Attachments: 

1. Memo from City Attorney’s office, dated July 17, 2006. 
2. Draft ZOTA 224. 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 224 Michigan Zoning Enabling Act\CC Public Hearing ZOTA 224 09 18 06.doc 
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01





















   
   

1

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 
 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the Code of 
the City of Troy.  
 
(Underlining, except existing section titles, and Strikeout denotes changes). 
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended by amending sections 02.10.00, 
02.10.01, 02.20.00, 10.20.08, 10.25.03, 34.60.05, 43.10.00, 43.45.00, and 43.65.00, and by 
adding new sections 03.25.00, 03.34.00, 35.60.03, and 43.46.00, as follows: 
 
 
02.10.00 PLANNING COMMISSION: 
  The City Planning Commission heretofore created pursuant to Public Act 285 of 

1931, MCL 125.31, et. seq., as amended, and the City Charter, is hereby 
continued. Pursuant to section 301(2) of Act 110 of the Public Acts of 2006, MCL 
125.3301(2), all powers and duties of a zoning commission are hereby transferred 
to Tthe City Planning Commission, which is hereby designated as the Commission 
specified in Section 4, of Act 207 of the Public Acts of 1921, MCL 125.584, as 
amended, and shall perform the duties of said Commission as provided in the 
Statute in connection with the amendment of this Chapter. 

 
02.10.01 MEMBERS, TERMS 

The City Planning Commission shall consist of nine (9) members who shall 
represent insofar as possible different professions or occupations and who shall 
be appointed by the Mayor subject to the approval by a majority vote of the City 
Council.  No member shall hold any other municipal office except that one of 
such members may be a member of the Board of Zoning Appeals.  Each 
member shall receive as compensation for his services a sum to be determined 
by City Council (Resolution #2004-10-537-E14).   The term of each member shall 
be three (3) years, except that three (3) members of the first commission so 
appointed shall serve for the term of one (1) year, three (3) for a term of two (2) 
years and three for a term of three (3) years.  All members shall hold office until 
their successors are appointed.  Members may, upon written charges and after a 
public hearing, be removed by the Mayor for inefficiency, neglect of 
dutymisfeasance, nonfeasance or malfeasance in office.  Vacancies occurring 



   
   

2

otherwise than through the expiration of term shall be filled for the unexpired term 
by the Mayor, subject to the approval by a majority vote of City Council. 
 
  

02.20.00 CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 
  The Troy City Council may from time to time, on recommendation from the City 

Planning Commission, or on petition amend, supplement or change the District 
boundaries or the regulations herein, or subsequently established herein pursuant 
to the authority and procedure established in Act 207110 of the Public Acts of 
19212006 as amended.  The City Planning Commission shall at least once per year 
prepare for the Troy City Council a report on the administration and enforcement of 
the zoning ordinance and recommendations for amendments or supplements to the 
ordinance. 

 
 
 
03.25.00 PUBLIC NOTICE OF PROPOSED REZONINGS AND TEXT AMENDMENTS: 
  A. If an application for rezoning or a zoning ordinance text amendment is 

complete and the matter is ready to proceed to a public hearing in 
accordance with Act 110 of the Public Acts 0f 2006, notice shall be given not 
less than 15 days before each public hearing at which the application will be 
considered.  Notice shall be given by publication in a newspaper that 
circulates in the City of Troy, and by personal delivery or mailing to the 
following: 

 
 1.   The applicant. 

 
2. The owner(s) of the property, if the applicant is not the owner. 

 
3. If the rezoning or zoning amendment involves less than 11 adjacent 

properties: the owners of all real property within 300 feet of the boundary 
for the property for which approval has been requested, as shown by the 
latest assessment roll, regardless of whether the owner and property is 
located within the City of Troy. 

 
4. If the rezoning or zoning amendment involves less than 11 adjacent 

properties: occupants of any structures within 300 feet of the boundary 
for the property for which the approval has been requested, regardless of 
whether the owner and property is located within the City of Troy. 

 
  B.         The notice shall include: 
 

1. The nature of the rezoning or zoning amendment being requested. 
 

2. The property(ies) for which the zoning amendment has been proposed. 
 

3. If the rezoning or zoning amendment involves less than 11 adjacent 
properties, a listing of all existing street addresses within the 
property(ies) which is(are) the subject  of the rezoning or zoning 
amendment.  Street addresses do not need to be created and listed if 



   
   

3

no such addresses exist.  If there are no street addresses, another 
means of identification may be used.  

 
4. The location where the application documents can be viewed and 

copied prior to the date the application will be considered. 
 

5. The date, time and location of when the hearing on the application will 
take place. 

 
6. The address at which written comments should be directed prior to the 

consideration. 
 
 
 
03.34.00 PUBLIC NOTICE FOR SPECIAL USE APPROVALS: 
  A. If the application for Special Use Approval is complete, notice shall be given 

not less than 15 days before each public hearing at which the application will 
be considered.  Notice shall be given by publication in a newspaper that 
circulates in the City of Troy, and by personal delivery or mailing to the 
following: 

 
 1.   The applicant. 

 
2. The owner(s) of the property, if the applicant is not the owner. 

 
3. The owners of all real property within 300 feet of the boundary for the 

property for which approval has been requested, as shown by the latest 
assessment roll, regardless of whether the owner and property is located 
within the City of Troy. 

 
4. The occupants of any structures within 300 feet of the boundary for the 

property for which the approval has been requested, regardless of 
whether the owner and property is located within the City of Troy. 

 
  B.         The notice shall include: 
 

1. The nature of the special use being requested. 
 

2. The property(ies) for which the request has been made. 
 

3. A listing of all existing street addresses within the property(ies) which 
is(are) the subject  of the special use.  Street addresses do not need to 
be created and listed if no such addresses exist.  If there are no street 
addresses, another means of identification may be used.  

 
4. The location where the application documents can be viewed and copied 

prior to the date the application will be considered. 
 

5. The date, time and location of when the hearing on the application will 
take place. 



   
   

4

 
6. The address at which written comments should be directed prior to the 

consideration. 
 

 
10.20.08       The Open Space Preservation Option may be utilized in the R-1A and R-1B districts, 

to comply with PA 179 of 2001 (amendment to City and Village Zoning Act)MCL 
125.3506, as amended, subject to the requirements of Section 34.60.00. 
 

 
 
 
10.25.03 Adult Foster Care Facilities, as defined by Section 400.7023 (4) of Act 218, of 1979 

of the State of Michigan, as provided for by said Act and to the extent exempted 
from local regulation by Section 400.733 (Sec. 33) thereof, and by Section 3206 (b) 
of Act 207110 of 19212006 as amended (the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act). 

 
34.60.05        Regulatory Flexibility:  To comply with the “open space preservation” provisions of 

the City and Village Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, the City may permit specific 
departures from the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance for yards and lots as a 
part of the approval process.  The applicant may cluster the dwellings on smaller 
lots, provided the following: 

 
  A. Overall density shall not exceed the number determined in the parallel plan. 
  
  B. Setback provisions shall be as follows: 
 

1. Setback requirements for main buildings at the perimeter of the    
development shall be equal to existing, underlying zoning. 

   
  2.   Setback requirement s for main buildings on the interior of the   

                                         development shall be provided to newly created streets, an  
                                          interior property line, or from the open space preservation area.   
                       If property lines do not exist between buildings, the setbacks  
                     shall be measured to an imaginary line between the  
           buildings.  The minimum setbacks shall be as follows: 
 
            Front        25’ 
            Rear         35’ 
                                                               Sides        10’ 
 
  C. All regulations applicable to parking and loading, general provisions, and 
                                  other requirements shall be met. 
 
  D.        The permitted uses shall be restricted to single family detached residential  
    development, residential accessory structures, and non-commercial 
                         recreation uses. 
 
 
   



   
   

5

35.60.03 PUBLIC NOTICE FOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
  A. For public hearings required with respect to a Planned Unit Development, 

notice shall be given not less than 15 days before each public hearing at 
which the Planned Unit Development will be considered.  Notice shall be 
given by publication in a newspaper that circulates in the City of Troy, and by 
personal delivery or mailing to the following: 

 
 1.   The applicant. 

 
2. The owner(s) of the property, if the applicant is not the owner. 
 

  3. The owners of all real property within 300 feet of the boundary for the    
property for which approval has been requested, as shown by the latest 
assessment roll, regardless of whether the owner and property is located 
within the City of Troy. 

 
  4. The occupants of any structures within 300 feet of the boundary for the  

property for which the approval has been requested, regardless of 
whether the owner and property is located within the City of Troy. 

 
  B.         The notice shall include: 
 

1. The nature of the Planned Unit Development being proposed. 
 

2. The property(ies) for which the request has been made. 
 

3. A listing of all existing street addresses within the property(ies) which 
is(are) the subject  of the proposed Planned Unit Development.  Street 
addresses do not need to be created and listed if no such addresses 
exist.  If there are no street addresses, another means of identification 
may be used.  

 
4. The location where the application documents can be viewed and copied 

prior to the date the application will be considered. 
 

5. The date, time and location of when the hearing on the application will 
take place. 

 
6. The address at which written comments should be directed prior to the 

consideration. 
 
 
 
43.10.00         CREATION AND MEMBERSHIP 

There is hereby established a Board of Zoning Appeals, which shall perform its   
duties and exercise its powers as provided in Section 5 Article VI of Act 207110 of  
Public Acts of 19212006, as amended, and in a way that the objectives of this 
chapter shall be observed, public safety secured, and substantial justice done.  The 
Board shall consist of seven (7) members appointed by the City Council, one (1) of 
whom shall be a member of the City Planning Commission with appointment 



   
   

6

occurring annually.  The City Council may also, at its discretion, appoint not more 
than two (2) alternate members, for the same term as regular members of the 
Board of Appeals, and one (1) alternate to the Planning Commission representative 
who shall serve for the same (1) year term as the Planning Commission 
representative.  Alternate members shall function in accordance with the 
procedures established by Section 5 Article VI of Act 207110 of Public Acts of 
19212006, as amended.  The Board shall annually elect a Chairperson and Vice 
Chairperson.  The compensation of the appointed members of the Board may be 
fixed by the City Council.  A member of the Board of Zoning Appeals may be 
removed by City Council for misfeasance, malfeasance, or nonfeasance in office 
upon written charges and after public hearing.  A member shall disqualify himself or 
herself from a vote in which the member has a conflict of interest.  Failure of a 
member to disqualify himself or herself from a vote in which the member has a 
conflict of interest constitutes malfeasance in office.  Whenever a vacancy occurs, a 
successor shall be appointed not more than one month from the date of the 
vacancy or the last date of the term of the preceding member.  Vacancies for 
unexpired terms shall be filled for the remainder of the term. 

 
 
 
 
 
43.45.00        NOTICE OF HEARING ONF APPEALS AND REQUESTS FOR VARIANCES:     

The Board of Zoning Appeals shall schedule thea hearing of the on all appeals and  
requests for variances and give notice of the appeal to persons to whom real 
property within 300 feet of the premises in question is assessed, and to the 
occupants of single and two-family dwellings within 300 feetas set forth below.  The 
notice shall be delivered personally or by mail addressed to the respective owners 
and tenants at the address given on the last assessment roll.  If the tenant’s name 
is not know, the term occupant may be used.  The Board of Zoning Appeals shall  
make a decisiondecide on  the appeal and/or variance request within a reasonable 
time.  The A party may appear at the hearing in person or by a representative.  The 
Board of Zoning Appeals may reverse, affirm or modify the decision of the Director 
of Building and Zoning.  The Board of Appeals may grant or deny a request for a 
variance, or grant a lesser variance than requested.  The Board of Appeals may 
impose conditions allowed by this ordinance and the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act.   
 
 

 
 
 
43.46.00 PUBLIC NOTICE FOR HEARINGS ON APPEALS AND VARIANCES: 
  A. If the application for an appeal or variance is complete, notice shall be given 

not less than 15 days before each public hearing at which the application will 
be considered.  Notice shall be given by publication in a newspaper that 
circulates in the City of Troy, and by personal delivery or mailing to the 
following: 

 
 1.   The applicant. 

 



   
   

7

2.   The owner(s) of the property, if the applicant is not the owner. 
   
      3.  The owners of all real property within 300 feet of the boundary for the 

property for which an appeal or variance has been requested, as shown by 
the latest assessment roll, regardless of whether the owner and property is 
located within the City of Troy. 

 
     4.  The occupants of any structures within 300 feet of the boundary for the 

property for which an appeal or variance has been requested, regardless of 
whether the owner and property is located within the City of Troy. 
 

  B.       The notice shall include: 
         

1.  The nature of the appeal or variance being requested. 
 
2. The property(ies) for which the request has been made. 

 
3. A listing of all existing street addresses within the property(ies) which is(are) 

the subject  of the appeal or variance.  Street addresses do not need to be 
created and listed if no such addresses exist.  If there are no street 
addresses, another means of identification may be used. 

 
4. The location where the application documents can be viewed and copied 

prior to the date the application will be considered. 
 

 
5. The date, time and location of when the hearing on the application will take   

place. 
 

                 6. The address at which written comments should be directed prior to the 
consideration. 
 

 
43.65.00           REVIEW BY CIRCUIT COURT 

A person affected by the Zoning Ordinance may aggrieved by a decision of the 
Board of Zoning Appeals may appeal the decision of the Board to Circuit Court, 
as provided by law.  An appeal to Circuit Court shall be filed within 30 days after 
the Board of Zoning Appeals certifies its decision in writing or approves the 
minutes of its decision. 

 
 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This 
ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or 
amended by this ordinance adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective 



   
   

8

date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at 
the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at 
the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective October 1, 2006 July 1, 2006 or seven days after the date 
of publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, _______. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



 
 
DATE:   September 12, 2006 

  
 

 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Miller, Planning Director 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  ZOTA 215-C Articles XLIII and XLIV Pertaining to  

Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals & 
   Results of Commercial Vehicle Visual Survey 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the changes to Articles XLIII and XLIV of the Zoning 
Ordinance transferring the authority to hear variance requests for the outdoor 
parking of commercial vehicles to the BZA be approved as recommended by the 
Planning Commission and City Management with an effective date January 1, 
2007.  We further recommend that Staff be directed to work with the Planning 
Commission to prepare a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to Section 40.66.00 
revising the provisions for the allowances for the outdoor parking of commercial 
vehicles in residential districts in line with the results of the commercial vehicle 
survey provided by City Council. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the July 24, 2006, meeting City Council postponed action on ZOTA 215-C. This 
was done to allow staff to review the definitions of commercial vehicles to see if 
there were necessary revisions.  In order to facilitate this task, Council was asked 
at the meeting of August 14, 2006, to complete a survey with examples of 
vehicles for consideration on how they should be categorized with relation to the 
definition and regulation of outdoor commercial vehicle storage on residential 
property in Troy.  Attached is a summary of the results from that survey and the 
subsequent recommendation for implementation. 
 
SURVEY RESULTS: 
In reviewing the responses there appears to be three criteria for determining 
whether a vehicle should be classified as a commercial vehicle that a majority of 
Council wishes to regulate.  The three criteria are: capacity, height, and signage.  

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



Further review shows that the key in determining whether a vehicle is a commercial 
vehicle that Council wishes to regulate depends on the number of criteria that are 
met. 
 
Capacity:  The Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) most effectively defines this 
criterion.  The State of Michigan, in their definition of a commercial vehicle, uses a 
GVWR above 10,000 pounds to define a commercial vehicle. 
 
Height:  A majority of Council agreed that some vehicles, even though they did not 
exceed the State’s 10,000-pound limit, were commercial vehicles that we wish to 
regulate.  These vehicles tended to be taller vehicles.  While specific dimensions 
are not available for each example it appears that this height limit is in the area of 8 
feet. 
 
Signage:  The responses from Council showed that there had to be some form of 
signage on the vehicle for it to be classified as a vehicle that they wished to 
regulate. 
 
The anomaly to this analysis is the examples used of “stake trucks”.  The two 
smaller examples of the stake trucks are under 10,000 GVWR and are less than 8’ 
in height.  If they had no signage (as shown in the examples) they would not be 
regulated.  However, Council did indicate that the outdoor storage of these types 
of vehicles should be regulated in the ordinance.  Specific language would need to 
be drafted to describe these types of vehicles. 
 
In addition, there were some inconsistencies in the analysis of trailers.  The results 
showed that an enclosed trailer with a sign indicating its commercial use was a 
vehicle to be regulated.  However, an unenclosed trailer without signage of 
approximately the same size, holding equipment for an obvious commercial use, 
was not a vehicle to be regulated.  As part of our action plan implementing the 
results of the blight strategies, staff was directed to look at modifying the 
requirements for the outdoor storage of recreational vehicles and trailers on 
residential property.  We will try to address these issues as part of that process. 
 
In response to the results of the survey, we propose that language be drafted for 
consideration as a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment that would modify the 
provisions for the outdoor storage of commercial vehicles on residential property in 
Section 40.66.00 of the Ordinance.  The proposed text would allow a residence to 
have one vehicle that exceeded the minimum threshold of any one of the individual 
criteria listed.  The text would further require a variance for the outdoor storage of 
more than one vehicle exceeding the minimum threshold of any one of the criteria, 
or the outdoor storage of any vehicle that exceeded two or more of the criteria. 
 



Under this scenario, the definition of a commercial vehicle contained within section 
04.20.32 would not need to be changed from its present form, however, the 
definitions of commercial vehicle: pick-up truck and commercial vehicle: van 
contained within Sections 04.20.33 and 04.20.34 respectively would no longer be 
necessary and should eventually be deleted. 
 
Trailers would continue to be regulated at this time as to their location on the site 
per the requirements of Section 40.65.00 of the Ordinance.  This current text 
requires that the trailers be located in a side or rear yard and be at least 3’ from a 
side or rear property line. 
 
Attachments: 1) Table of Results of Visual Survey of Commercial Vehicles 
   2) ZOTA 215-C, City Council Public hearing Draft 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
 
 

Reviewed as to Form and Legality: _____________________ _______ 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm  Date 
 City Attorney 
 
 



Results of Visual Survey of Commercial Vehicles 
 
EXAMPLE  VEHICLE TYPE SIGN? COMMERCIAL 

VEHICLE? 
REGULATE? 

 
NUMBER OF 

CRITERIA 
1-A    Passenger X 4 3 1 

1-B     Pickup X 3 3 1 
1-C Passenger     0 0 0
2-A   Passenger Van X 4 4 1 

2-B     SUV X 3 3 1 
2-C     Mini Van X 3 3 1 
3-A Cargo Van      3 2 0

3-B     Cargo Van X 2 2 1 
3-C Snow Plow Truck  1 1 0 
4-A Modified Pickup     3 2 0

4-B   Cube Van 4 4 2 
4-C   Box Truck 6 7 2 
5-A     Cargo Van X 3 3 1 

5-B   Cube Van X 4 4 2 
5-C     Big Truck 1 1 2 
6-A     Big Truck 1 1 2 

6-B   Dump Truck X 6 7 3 
6-C   Large Stake X 6 7 3 
7-A    Small Stake 3 4 0 

7-B   Medium Stake 4 5 0 
7-C   Large Stake 6 7 1 
8-A Enclosed Trailer      3 3 0

8-B   Enclosed Trailer X 5 4 1 
8-C Open Trailer with equipment  2 2 0 

 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Articles XLIII and XLIV of Chapter 39 
 
Article XLIII BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City 
of Troy is amended to add a provision that gives the responsibility for reviewing and 
approving Temporary Parking of Commercial Vehicle in One-Family Residential 
Districts to the Board of Zoning Appeals.  Article XLIV CITY COUNCIL APPEALS is 
removed in its entirety, to remove the responsibility for reviewing commercial 
vehicle appeals and off-street parking appeals from City Council.  
 
(Underlining, except for major section titles, denotes changes) 
 
 
[Add Section 43.74.00 to read as follows]: 
 
43.74.00 TEMPORARY PARKING OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES IN ONE- 

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
 
  The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the authority to review and 

approve applications for the Temporary Parking of Commercial 
Vehicles in One- Family Residential Districts.  

 
43.74.01 Temporary Parking of Commercial Vehicles in One-Family 

Residential Districts as set forth in the preceding Section shall be 
based upon meeting all of the following standards: 

 
  A. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no 

reasonable or feasible alternative locations for the parking of 
the subject commercial vehicle. 

 

Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   1



B. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site 
cannot accommodate, or cannot reasonably be constructed or 
modified to accommodate, the subject commercial vehicle.  

 
  C. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor 

parking of the subject commercial vehicle is adequate to 
provide for such parking in a manner which will not negatively 
impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively 
impact pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage 
street(s). 

 
43.74.02  The Board of Zoning Appeals may grant approval for 

Temporary Parking for a period not to exceed two (2) years. 
 
43.74.03  Except as otherwise provided in Sections 43.74.00 through 

43.74.02, the procedure governing other appeals to the 
Board of Zoning Appeals shall be applicable to applications 
for the Temporary Parking of Commercial Vehicles in One-
Family Residential Districts.   

 
[Revise (Delete in its’ entirety) Article 44 as follows]:
 
44.00.00 ARTICLE XLIV    CITY COUNCIL APPEALS 
 
44.01.00 APPEALS: OFF-STREET PARKING
 
  An appeal may be made to the City Council by any person or entity 

affected by a decision of the Building Inspector regarding off-street 
parking requirements, as set forth in Section 40.21.01 through 
40.21.83.  The appeal shall be made by filing with the Building 
Inspector an application for hearing before the City Council specifying 
the grounds for appeal.  The Building Inspector shall transmit to the 
Council all documents relating to the appeal. 

 
44.02.00 APPEALS:  OUTDOOR PARKING OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES IN 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
 
  An appeal may be made to the City Council by any person or entity 

affected by a decision of the Director of Building and Zoning in 
relation to the type or character of vehicle permitted to be parked 
outdoors in Residential Districts, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 40.66.00 of this Chapter.  The appeal shall be made by filing 
with the Building Department an application for hearing before the 
City Council specifying the grounds for appeal.  The Director of 

Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   2



Building and Zoning shall transmit to the City Council all documents 
relating to the appeal.  

 
(Rev. 02-05-01) 

 
44.02.01 Upon receipt of the Appeal Application from the Director of Building 

and Zoning, the City Council shall hold a Public Hearing on the 
request, the notice of which shall respect the following requirements: 

 
  A. All owners of property within 150 feet of the property proposed 

to be the site for parking of such vehicle shall be notified by U. 
S. Mail, and 

 
  B. Said notice shall be postmarked no less than 14 days before 

the date of the Public Hearing. 
 

(Rev. 02-05-01) 
 
44.02.02 Actions to grant appeals as set forth in the preceding Section shall be 

based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
  A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the 

residential site involved is compelled by parties other than the 
owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
  B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no 

reasonable or feasible alternative locations for the parking of 
the subject commercial vehicle. 

 
  C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site 

cannot accommodate, or cannot reasonably be constructed or 
modified to accommodate, the subject commercial vehicle. 

 
  D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor 

parking of the subject commercial vehicle is adequate to 
provide for such parking in a manner which will not negatively 
impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively 
impact pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage 
street(s). 

 
   (Rev. 05-09-94) 
 

Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   3



44.02.03  The City Council may grant appeals in relation to the type, 
character, or number of commercial vehicles to be parked 
outdoors in Residential Districts for an initial period not to 
exceed two (2) years, and may thereafter extend such actions 
for a similar period. 

 
   (Rev. 05-09-94) 
 
44.03.00  All other provisions regarding appeals to the Board of Zoning 

Appeals in Article XLIII shall be followed by the applicant and 
the City Council in reviewing appeals under this Article. 

 
Section 3.  Savings
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date
 
This Ordinance shall become effective January 1, 2007. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\215C COMMERCIAL VEHICLE APPEALS\ZOTA 215C 
CC Public Hearing Draft 09 18 06.doc 

Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   4



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, September 11, 2006, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:34 P.M. 
 
Pastor Dan Lewis – Troy Christian Chapel gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming (Absent) 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Fleming  
 
Resolution #2006-09-348 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Fleming’s absence at the Regular City Council and Closed 
Session meetings of September 11, 2006 is EXCUSED due to being out of the county.  
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) Mayor Schilling presented a Certificate of Recognition on behalf of the City of Troy to 

Rachael Zelmanski in recognition of her winning the Gold Medal in the standing long 
jump event at the North American Final of the Hershey’s Track and Field Youth Program   

b) Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy to representatives 
of the Troy Community Coalition on behalf of the City of Troy recognizing September 
2006 as National Alcohol and Drug Addiction Recovery Month 

c) Mayor Schilling read a proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy for the Daughters of the 
American Revolution, Ezra Parker Chapter recognizing September 17-23, 2006 as 
Constitution Week 2006   

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Parking Variance Request – 35 W. Square Lake Road   
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner and the 
public. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the Parking Variance Request at 35 
W. Square Lake Road until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, 
September 18, 2006 to provide the City Attorney with the opportunity to prepare language for 
an agreement between the Petitioner and the City of Troy. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2006-09-349 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution to postpone Parking 
Variance Request at 35 W. Square Lake Road by STRIKING “September 18, 2006” and 
INSERTING “September 25, 2006.” 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-09-350 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the Parking Variance Request at 35 
W. Square Lake Road until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, 
September 25, 2006 to provide the City Attorney with the opportunity to prepare language for 
an agreement between the Petitioner and the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

C-2 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 632-B) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, West Side 
 of Rochester Road, North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T  
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner and the 
public. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Table 
 
Resolution #2006-09-351 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby TABLES the Rezoning Application Rezoning 
Application (File No. Z 632-B) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, West Side of Rochester Road, 
North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T until after the break. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:57 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:07 P.M. 
 
Vote on Resolution to  Remove Item from the Table 
 
Resolution #2006-09-352 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REMOVES Rezoning Application Rezoning 
Application (File No. Z 632-B) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, West Side of Rochester Road, 
North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T from the table. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2006-09-353 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the Rezoning Application Rezoning 
Application (File No. Z 632-B) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, West Side of Rochester Road, 
North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T until the Regular City Council meeting 
scheduled for Monday, September 25, 2006 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
C-3 Amendment to Planned Unit Development – Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck 

Condominium Planned Unit Development (PUD 1), Located on the East Side of 
Rochester Road, North of Square Lake Road and South of South Boulevard – 
Section 2  

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner and the 
public. 
 
Resolution #2006-09-354 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the First Amendment to the Planned Unit Development Agreement for 
Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck Condominium Planned Unit Development (PUD 1), located 
on the east side of Rochester Road, north of Square Lake Road and south of South Boulevard, 
Section 2, being approximately 89.4 acres in size, is hereby GRANTED, as recommended by 
City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Lambert  
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Stine  
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File No: ZOTA 214) – Article X, Group Child 
Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts  

 
Resolution #2006-09-355 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the final action on the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 214) 
regarding regulations of Group Child Care Homes be POSTPONED until the first meeting in 
December, 2007 OR until NOTICE IS RECEIVED from the State of Michigan, Department of 
Labor and Economic Growth, whichever occurs first. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Howrylak, Lambert, Schilling   
No: Stine  
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-09-356 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-4d, E-4e and E-5, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of August 28, 2006 
be APPROVED as amended. 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) National Alcohol and Drug Addiction Recovery Month – September, 2006  
b) Constitution Week – September 17-23, 2006   
  
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000: Southeast Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG) 

 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay membership dues to the Southeast Michigan 
Council of Governments (SEMCOG) in the amount of $11,290.00, which covers the time period 
of July 15, 2006 to July 15, 2007. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – HAVEN 
Program 

 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-4b 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds budgeted in the 2006/2007 fiscal year to the 
HAVEN Program to provide community services to support victims of domestic assault for the 
residents of the City of Troy in the amount of $4,500.00 is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 

Avondale Youth Assistance 
 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds budgeted in the 2006/2007 fiscal year to the 
Avondale Youth Assistance to provide counseling and community services to prevent youth 
offender recidivism to the residents of Troy who reside in the Avondale School District at a cost 
of $2,210.00, paid in one installment is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal 

Services – Home Chore Program 
 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide for seasonal requirements of snow removal services for 
the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for one (1) additional year are hereby 
AWARDED to the low bidders, O’Neal Father & Sons of Clinton Township, as primary 
contractor, and Redburn’s Snow Plowing and Lawn Maintenance, Inc., of Rochester Hills as 
secondary contractor, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened August 23, 2006, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
E-6 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain, Altair Bellingham, LLC – 

Sidwell #88-20-26-200-078 – Project No. 00.970.3   
 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for Watermain from Altair Bellingham, LLC, owner 
of property having Sidwell #88-20-26-200-078, is hereby ACCEPTED; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

E-7 Vogt Drainage District Enlargement Briggs Park Condominiums, Project No. 
05.949.3 

 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the Vogt Drainage District be enlarged by 6.39 acres to accommodate the 
Briggs Park Condominium development in Section 14 of the city, is hereby APPROVED.  
 
E-8 Sole Source – Truox Chlorine Companion 
 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-8 
 
WHEREAS, B&B Pools and Spas of Livonia, MI, is the authorized dealer/distributor in Michigan 
for the Truox brand products; and 
 
WHEREAS, Truox Chlorine Companion is compatible with the ECS System installed at the 
Community Center Indoor Pool, which maintains proper chemical balance without skin irritation; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase Truox Chlorine 
Companion is hereby APPROVED with B&B Pools and Spas at $15.00 off the warehouse price, 
currently at $125.50 per 50lb pail. 
 
E-9 Private Agreement for Retail Center 1422-1470 West Maple – Project No. 06.914.3 
 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the 
City of Troy and D & K Hannawa, LLC is hereby APPROVED for the installation of sidewalk, 
water main and deceleration lane at 1422-1470 W. Maple, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10 Sole Source – East Jordan Iron Works – Complete Hydrant and Valve Repair Parts 
 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-10 
 
WHEREAS, East Jordan Iron Works, the manufacturer, has agreed to provide East Jordan 
complete hydrants, as well as hydrant and valve repair parts directly to the City of Troy at 
discounts greater than those of distributors; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract to provide East Jordan complete hydrants, 
and valve and hydrant repair parts is hereby APPROVED with East Jordan Iron Works at 
discounts of 49% and 46% respectively.  
 
E-11 Approval to Waive Parking Restrictions – Smith Middle School 
 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-11 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE the No Parking 
restrictions on the west side of Donaldson Street from Square Lake Road to Cotswold Street, 
on September 21, 2006, between the hours of 6:30 pm - 9:00 pm; November 15 and 16, 2006, 
between the hours of 11:30 am - 9:00 pm; March 8, 2007, between the hours of 11:30 am - 
9:00 pm; March 30, 2007, between the hours of 5:30 pm - 9:30 pm; and June 14, 2007, 
between the hours of 9:00 am - 12:00 noon. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Lower Level 

Conference Room Remote Camera System 
 
Resolution #2006-09-357 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish a two-camera Remote Camera System in the Troy City 
Hall Lower Level Conference Room is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, VPI – Visual 
Productions, Inc. of Southfield, MI, for an estimated total cost of $25,355.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements; and if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, such additional work 
is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost, at unit prices 
contained in the schedule of values opened July 19, 2006, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini,  
No: Howrylak, Broomfield  
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Industrial Row Drive 

and Meijer Drive Reconstruction and Water Main Reconstruction – Removed by City 
Council at the Request of City Management 

 
E-5 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Troy, Inc. 
 
Resolution #2006-09-358 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Troy, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2005 Class C licensed 
business located at 1129 E. Long Lake, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County, from Ichibang 
Corporation, Inc., and the request for a new dance-entertainment permit, be CONSIDERED for 
DENIAL; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy after hearing and 
considering statements from the Applicant Rachel Savaya, her attorney, John Kallabat, 
representatives from the Troy Police Department, and other persons, finds part or all of the 
following reasons for denial: 
 

1. The applicant lacks experience as a Class C Licensee; 
2. The applicant lacks experience in managing restaurants or other food service facilities; 
3. The proposed restaurant/night club is within 500 feet of a district restricted to residential 

uses; 
4. The applicant has failed to obtain a valid petition signed by 51 percent of persons living 

or doing business within a radius of 500 feet of the proposed business; 
5. The applicant cannot be expected to keep her proposed business free from greater 

vices; 
6. The Troy Police Department has had several problems with night clubs or dance halls in 

the past that have operated within the City of Troy; 
7. Several residents living near the applicant’s proposed business object to the approval of 

the applicant’s request to transfer ownership of a Class C liquor license and request for a 
new dance-entertainment permit; and 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That it is the CONSENSUS of this legislative body that 
the application BE RECOMMENDED for DENIAL. 

 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments b) City Council Appointments:  Animal Control Appeal Board; Board 
of Canvassers; and Cable Advisory Committee;  

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments  - No appointments 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2006-09-359 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Al Petrulis Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
Vincent James Viola Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
Board of Canvassers  
Appointed by Council (4) – 4 Year Terms 
 
Catherine McFarland Unexpired Term 12/31/09 
 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Nancy Chen Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 

 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
F-2 Amendment to Chapter 41 - Subdivision Control Ordinance 
 
Resolution #2006-09-360 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amending Sections 2.00, 2.99, 3.00, 3.01, 3.02, 3.03, 3.04, 
3.05, 4.06(A) and 6.00 of Chapter 41 of the Code of the City of Troy, the Subdivision Control 
Ordinance, is hereby ADOPTED as recommended by the City Attorney, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Pa 110 of 2006, Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File 

No: ZOTA 224) – Articles II, III, X, XXXIV, XXXV, and XLIII – September 18, 2006  
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Historic District Commission/Final – June 28, 2006 
b) Troy Daze Committee/Final – July 24, 2006 
c) Planning Commission Special-Study/Final – August 1, 2006 
d) Planning Commission/Final – August 8, 2006 
e) Troy Daze Committee/Draft – August 22, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports: None Submitted   
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from Ruth A. Johnson, Oakland County Clerk/Register of Deeds 

Thanking Tonni Bartholomew and Barbara Holmes for Their Assistance in Training 
Oakland County Poll Workers  

b) Letter of Appreciation from Matthew Carpus, Ferris State University to Chief Craft for 
Allowing Him to Serve His Internship with the Troy Police Department  

c) Letter of Appreciation from Louis C. Castle to Chief Craft for the Professionalism 
Displayed by PSA Jessica Morse 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

LERN Website Featuring the Troy Parks and Recreation Webpage  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7  HAVEN Quarterly Report – April – June 2006  

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 11, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:    
 
Resolution #2006-09-361 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Gerback v Troy. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 11:14 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 11:19 P.M. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:29 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
  September 6, 2006  
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
 

Re: Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low 
Bidder –  Outdoor Lighting Maintenance Contract 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
On August 23, 2006, bids were received to provide two (2) year requirements of 
street, parking lot, and athletic field light maintenance with an option to renew for 
one additional year. City management of the Public Works department 
recommends awarding the contract to the low total bidder, Allied Signs Inc. of 
Clinton Township, MI, for an estimated annual cost of $56,900.00, at unit prices 
and discounts contained in the bid tabulation.  
 
The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  Due to the nature of the contract and accountability of 
the contractor, the program was bid on a low total award basis. 
 
BUDGET: 
Funds are available in the Public Works Street Light Maintenance account # 
448.7802.150 and Parks account #759.7802.070 for any lighting work done on 
the ball diamonds.  
 
 
49 Vendors notified via MITN System 
 3 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  
 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-29
Opening Date -- 8/23/06 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 8/24/06 STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: * MOTOR CITY
ELECTRIC UTILITIES

Check #
Check Amount $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

EST
ITEM # QTY/YR DESCRIPTION Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

1. 200 ea Call Out & Determination of 95.00$     19,000.00$   180.00$    36,000.00$ 160.00$    32,000.00$    
  cause of outage

2. 500 ea Replace Lamp 25.00$     12,500.00$  22.00$      11,000.00$ 80.00$     40,000.00$    

3. 80 ea Replace Ballast 65.00$     5,200.00$    99.00$      7,920.00$   80.00$     6,400.00$      

4. 60 ea Replace Starter 35.00$     2,100.00$    50.00$      3,000.00$   80.00$     4,800.00$      

5. 100 ea Replace Fuse 30.00$     3,000.00$    50.00$      5,000.00$   40.00$     4,000.00$      
   (per pole/per electric box)

6. 20 ea Replace Lens 35.00$     700.00$       50.00$      1,000.00$   80.00$     1,600.00$      

7. 50 ea Replace Photo Cell 30.00$     1,500.00$    28.00$      1,400.00$   80.00$     4,000.00$      

8. 20 ea Replace Breakers 30.00$     600.00$       50.00$      1,000.00$   40.00$     800.00$         

9. 200 ea Tighten & Lubricate Anchor Bolts
Horizontal Refractors, Glass etc 60.00$     12,000.00$  45.50$      9,100.00$   100.00$    20,000.00$    

10. 5 ea Remove & Replace Fixture 60.00$     300.00$       100.00$   500.00$     125.00$    625.00$        

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 56,900.00$  75,920.00$ 114,225.00$ 
CONTACT INFORMATION:

Hours of Operation: 8am-5pm 7:30-4pm 7am-3:30pm
24HR Contact Number:

ADDITIONAL ITEMS, IF REQUIRED   
PRICE/HR/CREW PRICE/HR/CREW PRICE/HR/CREW

11. Hourly labor rate per crew
A) Regular Time 110.00$        150.00$      143.10$         
B) Overtime 155.00$        210.00$      194.69$         
C) Holiday Time 200.00$        270.00$      246.28$         

$/HR/Electrician $/HR/Electrician $/HR/Electrician
12. Journeyman Electrician

A) Regular Time 68.00$          70.00$        75.00$           
B) Overtime 95.00$          100.00$      105.00$         
C) Holiday Time 130.00$        130.00$      130.00$         

13. Hourly rate for Backhoe/Operator
A) Regular Time 115.00$        130.00$      80.00$           
B) Overtime 165.00$        160.00$      100.00$         
C) Holiday Time 205.00$        195.00$      120.00$         

14. Hourly rate for Service Truck w/Crane
A) Regular Time 140.00$        105.00$      80.00$           
B) Overtime 210.00$        130.00$      100.00$         
C) Holiday Time 280.00$        165.00$      120.00$         

$/HR/Inc Operator

1090002640 473333284 473329158

ALLIED SIGNS INC

586.557.2919

$/HR/Inc Operator

$/HR/Inc Operator

HARLAN ELECTRIC
COMPANY

248.452.0004 313.363.4103

$/HR/Inc Operator $/HR/Inc Operator

$/HR/Inc Operator



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-29
Opening Date -- 8/23/06 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 8/24/06 STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: * MOTOR CITY
ELECTRIC UTILITIES

15. Non-Contract Replacement Parts
Discount + % or - % +30% - 25% +10% +10%
Parts List Dated 8/10/2006

or Invoiced Price
Manufactured by: Various

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
      Cannot Meet

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

RESPONSE TIME:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N YES YES YES

PROPOSAL: Furnish All Labor, Tools, Equipment, Transportation Services, and Traffic Controls to
Provide Two-Year Requirements of Street, Parking Lot, and Athletic Field Light
Maintenance with an Option to Renew for One Additional Year

ATTEST:
  Marina Basta-Farouk * DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
  Cheryl Stewart
  Susan Leirstein _______________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 06-29 Street Light Maintenance

ALLIED SIGNS INC

NET 30 DAYS

MANUFACTURER

48 HOURS

BLANK

HARLAN ELECTRIC
COMPANY

NET 30 DAYS

ONE YR ON LABOR

48 HOURS

Performance bond
excluded in pricing

NET 30

MFG / LABOR 1 YEAR

48 HOURS

BLANK



campbellld
Text Box
E-04b













 
September 6, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:   Phil Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
               Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval To Expend 

Budgeted Funds– Common Ground 
 
 
APPROVAL TO EXPEND FUNDS 
 
City management requests approval to provide funding to Common Ground, during the 
2006/2007 fiscal year at a cost to the City of Troy of $2,100.00, to be paid in one 
installment.   
 
HISTORY 
 
The services provided by Common Ground include: the Oakland County Crisis 
Response Team, Victim’s Assistance Program, Community Education and Training 
Programs, and a Legal Clinic. 
 
A funding agreement was previously approved by the City Council on August 31, 1998, 
February 5, 2001, January 7, 2002, February 17, 2003, with resolution #98-393-C-6, 
#2001-02-076-E-4, #2002-01-006-E-2, #2003-02-091-E-9, #2004-11-576-E-17 and 
#2005-10-458-E-4e respectively. 
 
 
BUDGET 
 
The Police Department account #305.7802.107 has been designated for the funding of 
this program.   
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality:  _________________________    ______________  
         Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Terry Colussi, Office Coordinator 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND  
COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY 

 
 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and Common Ground 
Sanctuary, 1410 South Telegraph Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302, a Michigan 
non-profit organization, (hereinafter referred to as “ Common Ground Sanctuary”),  
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for problem-solving for individuals and 
families in crisis, victims of crime, persons with mental illness, persons trying to cope 
with critical situations and runaway and homeless youths, especially those who cannot 
afford private services; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the general purpose of Common Ground Sanctuary is to provide 
opportunities for individuals and families in crisis: 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 
individual, including youth and families of the CITY, and in consideration of the 
promises and mutual covenants hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 
 
COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY RESPONSIBILITIES.   
 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 
be provided by Common Ground Sanctuary is as follows: 

 
 A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 
counselor, on staff at Common Ground Sanctuary shall oversee programs 
designed to make crisis assistant available including, but not limited to, a 24-hour 
crisis telephone line, victim assistance programs, runaway and homeless youth 
shelters, street outreach programs, legal clinics and in-home counseling programs.   
 

B.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall offer these programs to  individuals, 
including youth, and families in crisis, victims of crime, persons with mental 
illness, individuals trying to cope with critical situations and runaway and 
homeless youths, including residents of the City of Troy. 

 
C.  Common Ground Sanctuary will continue to provide service at the 

current level or greater. 
 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 
provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at Common Ground Sanctuary, 
and will be available for  inspection by the CITY on request. 

 

 1



3.  Location of Facility.  Common Ground Sanctuary has administrative offices at 
1410 South Telegraph Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302.  The CITY shall 
be notified immediately of any relocation or planned relocation of the facility. 

 
4.  Service Documentation.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall provide a quarterly 
report which may be in the form of minutes from monthly Common Ground 
Sanctuary Board of Directors meetings to the CITY in October, January, April 
and July, including but not limited to the following information: 

 
A.  Data regarding Common Ground Sanctuary’s operation, including but 
not limited to, the number of persons serviced by Common Ground 
Sanctuary programs, attendance records for counseling and programs, 
duration of programs, etc. 

 
  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 
 

C.  All community and special projects undertaken by Common Ground 
Sanctuary. 

 
  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

jeopardizing the confidentiality of the Common Ground Sanctuary 
clientele. 

 
5.  Fiscal Requirements.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall maintain an 
accounting system to identify and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and 
expenses for which services are provided under this Agreement.  The accounting 
system, at a minimum, shall consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, 
cash disbursements journal, and general ledger.  All expenditures and income 
must be supported by vouchers and receipts that detail the reason for the 
transaction. 

 
Common Ground Sanctuary shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget 
for any fiscal year which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this 
Agreement.  These budgets shall show the Common Ground Sanctuary budget, 
total expenditures, and expenditures funded and claimed to other funding sources. 

 
Common Ground Sanctuary shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial 
statement which may be in the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to 
the Common Ground Sanctuary Board of Directors in October, January, April and 
July, including total income and expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 
Common Ground Sanctuary agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other 
documents relevant to this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 
6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, Common Ground Sanctuary 
will review with the CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to 

 2



determine if there are appropriate crisis guidance programs and counseling 
activities which may be utilized by individuals and families.   

 
7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 
for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 
of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 
administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 
consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 
8.  Subcontracts.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall not assign this Agreement or 
enter into any subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining 
prior written approval of the CITY. 

 
9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall indemnify, 
save and hold harmless the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and 
affiliated entities from any losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, 
and liabilities, including attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may 
arise from or be caused directly or indirectly by any act or omission of Common 
Ground Sanctuary or its officers, directors, employees, agents or volunteers. 
 
10. Insurance.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall present to the CITY 
documentation that is satisfactory to the CITY that indicates that Common 
Ground Sanctuary is covered under a policy of insurance or self-insurance with 
Oakland County, Michigan. 

 
TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to Common Ground Sanctuary an amount not to 
exceed $ 2,100.00 for  services performed under this Agreement.  Payment is to be made 
in one payment in the fall of 2006. 
 
 Obligations incurred by Common Ground Sanctuary prior to or after the period 
covered by this Agreement shall be excluded. 
 
MUTUAL COVENANTS 
 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that Common Ground 
Sanctuary fails to comply with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its 
responsibility as indicated in the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the 
methods and techniques being utilized in accomplishing the goals of this 
Agreement are not acceptable or compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the 
CITY reserves the right to cancel this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days 
written notice to Common Ground Sanctuary,  If  Common Ground Sanctuary 
becomes defunct, Common Ground Sanctuary will reimburse the CITY for all 
pre-payments based on the date of termination. 

 

 3



2.  Employees of  Common Ground Sanctuary.  Representatives, employees and 
volunteers of Common Ground Sanctuary shall not be deemed to be employees or 
agents of the CITY  for any purposes solely because of their participation with 
Common Ground Sanctuary. 

 
3.  Independent Contractors.  Common Ground Sanctuary is an independent 
contractor, and its agents, employees, or servants are responsible for its own 
conduct.  This Agreement is not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 
4.  Compliance with Laws.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall be responsible for 
compliance with all Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of 
the law or ordinance results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 
5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 
2006 and shall terminate on June 30, 2007 unless terminated under the provisions 
set forth in this Agreement. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and Common Ground Sanctuary have 
caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective authorized officers. 
 
 
WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________ 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 

____________________________                 ______________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:     COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY 
 
 
____________________________  _____________________________ 
      Tony Rothschild, President and CEO  
 
____________________________  

 4



  September 8, 2006 

To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
Re: Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – 

Emergency Medical Services – 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends approval of the three (3) year option to renew for Emergency Medical 
Services with Alliance Mobile Health of Rochester Hills, MI, for an estimated annual cost of 
$500,000.00 under the current terms and conditions of the original contract.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On June 2, 2003, Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to provide for emergency medical 
services with an option to renew for three additional one-year periods to the low bidder submitting the 
best value proposal, Alliance Mobile Health at an estimated cost of $463,623.00 per year {Resolution 
#2003-06-281}. 
 
In the past three years, Alliance Mobile Health has done an excellent job handling the emergency 
medical services for the City of Troy. Not only has Alliance meet or exceeded the response time 
requirements every month, quarterly surveys are conducted on patient satisfaction. On a scale of 1-4, 
4 being the best, Alliance Mobile Health averages 3.84.  
 
Alliance Mobile Health is the first and only CAAS (Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance 
Services) credited EMS provider based in Oakland County.  CAAS was formed in 1990, as a not-for-
profit agency to be a standard bearer for medical transportation systems. The American Ambulance 
Association, the American College of Emergency Physicians, the National Association of EMS 
Physicians, the National Association of State EMS Directors, the National Association of EMTs, and 
the International Association of Fire Chiefs, with liaison representation from The National Highway 
Transportation Safety Administration, sponsor this accreditation. CAAS Accreditation signifies that 
ambulance services have met the "gold standard" determined by the ambulance industry to be 
essential in a modern emergency medical services provider. 
 
AMH has forged an excellent working relationship with the Troy Police and Fire Departments. AMH 
has coordinated and conducted many police and fire training sessions, and have been a valued 
member of the City of Troy Special Response Unit.      
 
AMH is currently planning on purchasing or leasing new office and garage space in Troy. 
This move should be completed by November 2006.  
 
MARKET SURVEY 
Due to the best value process used in evaluating the request for proposal, a market survey was not 
done; since the City utilizes an evaluation process in which bidders are required to meet minimum 
specified requirements, along with a weighted score for level of services.   
 
BUDGET 
Funding for this service is available in the Police Department Uniform Patrol Account – 1st 
Responder Service # 315.7802.010.    
 
Prepared by:  Sergeant Donald Ostrowski 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 8, 2006 
 
 
 
City of Troy 
Chief William Nelson 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI   48084 
 
Dear Chief Nelson, 
 
Alliance Mobile Health would agree to a 3-year extension vs. the current 
one year extension over the next 3 years.  The services are to provide 
emergency medical paramedic first responder services to the City of Troy.    
All of the terms and conditions outlined in the contract remain 
acceptable to our organization. 
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 248-
495-5634. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Laurie Thiel, CEO 
Alliance Mobile Health 
1625 Star Batt Drive 
Rochester Hills, MI  48309 



April 22, 2003                                                                             

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager                                                                     
Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director                                                                 
Police Chief Charles Craft                                                                                   
Fire Chief William Nelson                                                                  

RE:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award –    
Emergency Medical Services Contract  

RECOMMENDATION 
On January 31, 2003, request for proposals (RFP) were opened for a three-year contract for 
Emergency Medical Services with an option to extend for three additional one-year periods.  
It is respectfully recommended that an award be made to the highest scoring, lowest bidder, 
Alliance Mobile Health at an estimated cost of $463,623 annually or $ 1,390,869 for the 
three years of the contract, at unit prices contained in the attached tabulation dated 1/31/03.  
If approved by Council, this RFP shall be awarded to the recommended bidder contingent 
upon submission of proper proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all 
specified requirements.  
 
Alliance Mobile Health received the highest recommendations from the committee of 
evaluators from the City of Troy. Not only did this company furnish the most impressive and 
complete proposal package; they also prepared a proposal with the lowest prices.  

SELECTION PROCESS 
The selection of the service provider was based upon weighted criteria including the RFP 
responses and price.  Using a 100 point scoring process, prices were equated to the 
amounts budgeted for Ambulance Services ($0 = 100 points), and a scoring formula for First 
Responder Service.  The final score calculation was determined as follows: 

   40% x Ambulance Service Price Score                                                                                       
40% x Medical First Responder Price Score                                                                
20% x Average of Service Weighted Scores  

100% = Final Weighted Score 

NOTE:  The estimated cost of $1.4 million for the three years is based upon 21,900 hours per year used in the 
deployment plan acceptable for medical services.   

BUDGET  
The current contract expires on October 1, 2003, and the new one would commence at that 
time. The Police Department has budgeted funds for this service in the Uniform Patrol – 1st 
Responders Account #315.7802.010 for the fiscal year 2003-2004.    

 25 Proposals Sent                                                                                                                                                                     
5 Firms attended Pre-bid Meeting                                                                                                                            
4 Proposal Responses Received                                                                                                                                                          
1 No Bid: (1) Company bidding through another ambulance service. 

Prepared by:  Sgt. Donald Ostrowski  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY–  
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

 
STATISTICS: 

u 25 Request for Proposal documents sent to prospective bidders  
u 4 responses were received 
u Alliance Mobile Health was the most qualified bidder by receiving 

the highest score  
 
Final Score Calculation: 
 

40% x    Ambulance Service Price Score 
40% x    Medical First Responder Price Score 
20% x    Other Score 
 
100%  Final Weighted Score 

 
* In order to equate the price and the weighted evaluation process scoring, all scores were 

converted into a score with the base of 100 
 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 

 
FINAL SCORING 

COMPANY  SCORE 
Alliance Mobile Health 89 
Community EMS Inc. 88 
American Medical Response (AMR) 66 
Universal – Macomb Ambulance 15 

 
Final Score Calculations:    8 MINUTES 

 
VENDORS: 
   

Alliance 
Mobile Health 

Community 
EMS Inc. 

American Medical 
Response  (AMR) 

Universal – 
Macomb 
Ambulance 

Score 
 

    

Ambulance Price 
Score:  (x .40) =  

 100 x .40 =40 100 x .40 =40 100 x .40 =   40  0  x .40 =   0 

     
First Responder Price 
Score:  (x .40) = 

   75 x .40 = 30   75 x .40 = 30   25 x .40 =   10  0  x .40 =   0 

     
Service Weight Score:  
             (x  .20) = 

  94 x .20 =  19  92 x .20 =  18  79 x .20 =    16 74 x .20 = 15 

     

FINAL SCORE: 89** 88 66 15 
 
** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD



ADDITIONAL SCORING SUMMARIES: 
 

 
PRICE SCORE – AMBULANCE SERVICE: 8 MINUTES 
 
Vendors: SCORE 
Alliance Mobile Health 100 
Community EMS Inc. 100 
American Medical Response (AMR) 100 
Universal – Macomb Ambulance 0 
 
PRICE SCORE – FIRST RESPONDERS SERVICE: 
 
Vendors: Score 
Alliance Mobile Health 75 
Community EMS Inc. 75 
American Medical Response (AMR) 25 
Universal – Macomb Ambulance   0 
 
 
WEIGHTED SCORE: 
 
Raters: 1 2 AVERAGE 
Vendors:    
Alliance Mobile Health 96 92 94 
Community EMS Inc. 94 89 92 
American Medical Response (AMR) 79 79 79 
Universal – Macomb Ambulance 76 72 74 
   
 
 
   
G:/BidAward 01-02 / Best Value – RFP – EMS Emergency Medical Services - WeightedRatingSummary 03-03.doc 
 











 September 8, 2006  
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager  
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
RE:  Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise 

Renewal Option – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Streets Division of the Public Works Department recommends approval of the 
second one-year contract renewal option for the pavement seam and fracture-sealing 
program with Scodeller Construction, Inc. of South Lyon, MI, for an estimated total cost 
of $500,000.00.  All terms, conditions, and unit pricing will remain the same as for the 
2004 season and will expire June 30, 2007. 
 
SUMMARY 
On October 18, 2004, Troy City Council approved a contract to provide for a pavement 
seam and fracture-sealing program with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-
year periods, to the low bidder, Scodeller Construction, Inc. at an estimated cost of 
$657,500.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 29, 2004. 
{Resolution # 2004-10-546-E7}.  
 
On September 12, 2005, Council exercised the first of two (2) one-year renewal options 
and authorized changes in the quantity of work either additive or deductive not to 
exceed 25% of the total project cost  {Resolution#2005-09-416-E4e}.   
 
MARKET SURVEY 
The Purchasing Department has conducted a market survey and concurs with the 
recommendation to exercise the second option to renew as fuel prices continue to be 
elevated over 2004 prices.  
 
BACKGROUND 

• Scodeller Construction, Inc. has been able to produce a quality product for 
the City. 

• Moving this work forward would improve the safety for all pedestrians and 
also reduce the liability for the City. 

• Scodeller Construction, Inc. has agreed to exercise the one-year option to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions. 

 
BUDGET 
Funding for this program will come from 2006-2007 budgeted funds available in the 
Capital Accounts for Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Major and Local Roads, 
Account #401479.7989.200 ($100,000.00) and #401499.7989.120 ($400,000.00) 
respectively. 
 
 
Prepared by:  Marina Basta Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04e





 
 

  August 16, 2005 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – PAVEMENT SEAM & FRACTURE SEALING  
 
 
 MICHIGAN JOINT SEALING, INC.– Jerry                                                     (248) 476-4120 
According to Jerry, all prices will be the same for materials for pavement and sealing.  
There maybe an increase of 10% in the next nine months, because of fuel, but as far as 
he’s concerned he believes prices will even out by next year.  As of new products 
coming out, he has not heard of any for this year.  
 
 
Based upon the above comment, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer 
to renew the contract for Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing to the current vendor on 
the fact that costs will remain the same now, but will increase in the coming nine months 
based upon rising transportation and fuel costs.    
 
CC: Susan Leirstien 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-40
Opening Date -- 9-29-04 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 10/7/04 PAVEMENT SEAM & FRACTURE SEALING

VENDOR NAME: *
 

Ck Number
Ck Amount

Proposal:  City of Troy Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing Program with an Option to Renew for
Two (2) Additional One-Year Periods

Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for Material for Major
and Local Roads

4 Traffic Control Included ------ Included ------ Included
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL *  $  657,500.00  $  708,250.00 

INSURANCE:                        Can meet XX XX
                                               Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION:
                                         Hrs of Operation 7AM-7PM 7AM-4PM
                                         Contact Number (248)787-1139 (248)476-4120

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Y or N

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:
                                               Can Meet XX XX
                                               Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 30 NET 30

WARRANTY: 1 YEAR 1 YEAR

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N YES YES

LEGAL STATUS OF BIDDER Y or N YES YES
NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT Y or N YES YES

ATTEST: * DENOTES LOW BIDDER
MaryAnn Hays
Marina Basta-Farouk Jeanette Bennett
Tom Rosewarne Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:ITB-COT 04-40 Pavement Seam & Seal

$2,500.00

MICHIGAN JOINT SEALING
INC

233619886 649171894

UNIT 
PRICE

INC
SCODELLER CONSTRUCTION

Yes, Bi-Weekly

$2,500.00

EXTENSION UNIT 
PRICE

EXTENSION

1 Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for   Major Roads - Labor

350,000 
L.F.

 $    0.665 

ITEM DESCRIPTION Estimated 
Quantities

2 Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for   Local Roads - Labor

500,000 
L.F.

 $    0.635 

 $  232,750.00  $     0.67  $  234,500.00 

 $  317,500.00  $     0.70  $  350,000.00 

First Year by June 30, 2005

3 275,000 
LBS.

 $      0.39  $  107,250.00  $     0.45  $  123,750.00 

Upon Completion



September 7, 2006 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Steven Pallotta, Building Operations Director  
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Rescind Partial Bid Award / Re-Award Contract –  

Janitorial Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends that City Council rescind the award with prejudice to Elite 
Maintenance of Elk Grove Village, Illinois for Janitorial Services, Group 2 and 4, (Resolution 
#2005-08-375-E-4a) due to their exodus from the state of Michigan.   
 
Staff also recommends re-awarding the contract to the next lowest acceptable bidders, American 
Cleaning and Road Runr Maintenance.  Both vendors currently hold janitorial contracts with the 
City.  Subsequent letters received from American Cleaning and Road Runr Maintenance indicate 
an interest in expanding the scope of their work at prices originally bid in 2003.  Approval is 
needed to amend their contracts to include the public works facilities and fire halls beginning 
October 1, 2006 and expiring October 30, 2007, at an estimated additional cost of $20,299.37 
and $29,544.84 respectively.  Unit prices and square footages of the areas to be serviced are as 
follows –  
 
Location Square Footage $ per SqFt Cost per Month 
Group 2:   
American Cleaning 

   

  DPW Facility 9,500 $.110 $1,045.00
  P&R Garage 1,781 $.290 $   516.49
Group 4:   
Road Runr Maintenance 

  

  #1 Fire Halls 2,175 $.12 $   261.00
  #2 2,320 $.12 $   278.40
  #3 3,000 $.12 $   360.00
  #4 1,914 $.12 $   229.68
  #5 3,000 $.12 $   360.00
  #6 1,920 $.12 $   230.40
Fire/Police Training 
Center 

 
6,915 

 
$.08 $   553.20

 
BACKGROUND 
On August 1, 2005, Troy City Council exercised and approved the option to renew the janitorial 
services contract for two (2) additional years with Road Runr Maintenance, American Cleaning, 
Elite Maintenance, and This is It! Quality Cleaning under the same contract terms and conditions to 
expire October 30, 2007 (Resolution #2005-08-375-E-4a).  On August 31, 2006, the City of Troy 
received a letter from Elite Maintenance indicating their intent to terminate the janitorial 
maintenance contract effective September 30, 2006 at midnight. 
 
Staff recommends rescinding the award with prejudice that will suspend Elite Maintenance from 
being awarded City contracts for three (3) years.  If they request to be readmitted after this time, 
Administrative Memorandum guides the process for re-entry.   
 
BUDGET 
Funds for janitorial services are available in the various facilities’ operating accounts for custodial 
contractors. 
 
Prepared by: Susan Leirstein, CPPB, Purchasing Systems Administrator 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05







CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 03-06
Opening Date -- 9-23-03 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 10
Date Prepared -- 10/14/03 JANITORIAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:      Road Runr Mtnce Inc
CHECK # 100870289 469896 197864054

CHECK AMOUNT 15,150.00$        15,150.00$          15,150.00$     
SQUARE COST / $ PER COST / $ PER COST / $ PER 
FOOTAGE MONTH SQUARE FT. MONTH SQUARE MONTH SQUARE FT.

Group 1:  Civic Center Sites
CITY HALL & POLICE 86,388 4,751.34$        0.055$                6,582.77$          0.0762     12,094.32$    0.140$              

52-4 DISTRICT COURT 29,000 2,030.00$        0.070$                2,891.30$          0.0997     3,190.00$      0.110$              

COMMUNITY CENTER 97,835 8,071.39$            0.0825$              12,043.49$        0.1231     24,458.75$    0.25$               

LIBRARY 44,500 2,447.50$        0.055$                4,556.80$          0.1024     4,895.00$      0.11$               

 Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $     17,300.23  $       26,074.35  $   44,638.07 
Yearly Total of Group 1:  $   207,602.73  $     312,892.25  $ 535,656.84 
CASUAL-  22,724 Hrs x Regular Time; 272,688.00$         307,455.72$           244,283.00$      
CASUAL - Holiday Time  x 96 HRS 1,728.00$            2,598.72$               2,064.00$          
GRAND TOTAL -W/CASUAL - GROUP 1: 482,018.73$      * 622,946.69$       782,003.84$   
Group 2:  Garage Facilities

DPW FACILITY 9,500 1,140.00$        0.12$                 1,107.70$          0.1166     1,045.00$      0.110$              

P&R GARAGE 1,781 623.35$           0.35$                 340.35$             0.1911     516.49$         0.290$              

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $       1,763.35 1,448.05$          1,561.49$      
Yearly Total of Group 2:  $     21,160.20  $       17,376.60 **  $   18,737.88 <=Re-Award

Group 3:  
Enrichment Facilities
MUSEUM 5X / Week 704.99$           0.065$                1,713.67$          0.1580     867.68$         0.080$              

10,846
LLOYD STAGE 3X / Week 736.56$           0.09$                 848.68$             0.1037     654.72$         0.080$              

NATURE CENTER 8,184
Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $       1,441.55  $         2,562.35  $     1,522.40 
Yearly Total of Group 3  $     17,298.60  $       30,748.19  $   18,268.80 
Nature Center - 1,040 Hrs x Regular Time; 12,480.00$          14,071.20$             11,180.00$        
GRAND TOTAL -W/CASUAL - GROUP 3: 29,778.60$        44,819.39$          29,448.80$     *
Group 4:  Fire Sites
FIRE HALLS:
1 (Tuesday and Friday) 2,175 261.00$           0.12$                 228.59$             0.1051$   261.00$         0.120$              

2 (Monday and Thursday) 2,320 278.40$           0.12$                 271.21$             0.1169$   278.40$         0.120$              

3 (Tuesday and Friday) 3,000 360.00$           0.12$                 315.30$             0.1051$   360.00$         0.120$              

4 (Tuesday and Friday) 1,914 229.68$           0.12$                 201.16$             0.1051$   229.68$         0.120$              

5 (Monday and Thursday) 3,000 360.00$           0.12$                 350.70$             0.1169$   360.00$         0.120$              

6 (Monday and Thursday) 1,920 230.40$           0.12$                 224.45$             0.1169$   230.40$         0.120$              

FIRE/ POLICE TRAINING 6,915 553.20$           0.08$                 577.40$             0.0835$   1,037.25$      0.150$              

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP 2,272.68$        2,168.81$          2,756.73$      
Yearly Total of Group 4: 27,272.16$      <= Re-Award 26,025.75$        * 33,080.76$    
Group 5: Other Sites WITHDREW FROM GROUP 5 - 

SYLVAN GLEN: 2X /  112.50$           0.15$                 259.20$             0.3456$   INCORRECT SQFT 0.040$              

Maintenance Bldg. - All Year 750 AMOUNTS

SYLVAN GLEN GC: 5X / 255.00$           0.15$                 631.55$             0.3715$   0.030$              

Pro Shop (9 mos./yr) 1,700
SANCTUARY LAKE GC: 2X /  107.85$           0.15$                 244.24$             0.3397$   0.040$              

Maintenance Bldg. - All Year 719
SANCTUARY LAKE GC: 5X / 150.00$           0.15$                 660.50$             0.6605$   0.050$              

Pro Shop (9 mos./yr) 1,000
ENGINEERING FIELD 2X / Week 353.55$           0.15$                 135.53$             0.0575$   0.040$              

OFFICE: All Year 2,357
Monthly TOTAL of GROUP 978.90$           1,931.02$          -$               
Yearly Total of Group 5: 11,746.80$      23,172.26$        -$               

23,756.71$          34,184.59$             N/A
Yearly Grand Totals - Groups 1 - 5 285,080.49$      410,215.05$           N/A
GRAND TOTAL - Groups 1-5 w/Causal 571,976.49$      734,340.69$       N/A

American Cleaning

LOCATION

Monthly GRAND TOTAL GROUPS 1 - 5

Elite Maintenance



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 03-06
Opening Date -- 9-23-03 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 10
Date Prepared -- 10/14/03 JANITORIAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:     Road Runr Mtnce Inc

CASUAL LABOR:
 City Hall, Courts, Comm.Ctr, Library 
   22,724 Hrs x Regular Time; 272,688.00$     307,455.72$        10.75              244,283.00$   
Holiday Time   96 Hrs 1,728.00$         2,598.72$            21.50              2,064.00$       
Nature Center - 1,040 Hrs X Regular Time; 12,480.00$       14,071.20$          10.75              11,180.00$     

NOTE: HOURLY RATES NORMALIZED

Regular Time: 12.00$             13.53$   9.00 to 12.50
Employee Pay Range: 7.75  to  9.00 13.53  to 19.55 9.00  to 12.50
Holiday Time: 18.00$             27.07$   18.00 to 25.00

TOTAL OF CASUAL LABOR: 286,896.00$     324,125.64$        257,527.00$   

GRAND TOTAL:

RETURN OF BID DEPOSIT Pick Up X
Mail X X

INSURANCE: Can Meet X X X
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y or N Yes Yes Yes
DATE 9/17/2003 9/21 & 22/03 9/17/2003

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes (Part of) Yes

TERMS: 30 days Blank Blank

WARRANTY: Per Contract Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank None Blank

PROPOSAL:  Two(2) Year Requirements of Janitorial Services for Various City Locations with an Option
to Renew for Two(2) Additional Years

* DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDERS

** DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS

ATTEST:
Steve Pallotta
Mary Ann Hayes ______________________________
Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director
G: Janitiorial Services ITB-COT 03-06

   Elite Maintenance American Cleaning



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 03-06
Opening Date -- 9-23-03 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 10
Date Prepared -- 10/14/03 JANITORIAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: THIS IS IT  OMNI Facility     Giant Janitorial
CHECK # 329724225 650318445 698816125

CHECK AMOUNT 15,150.00$       15,150.00$     15,150.00$     
SQUARE COST / $ PER COST / $ PER COST / $ PER 
FOOTAGE MONTH SQUARE FT. MONTH SQUARE FT. MONTH SQUARE FT.

Group 1:  Civic Center Sites
CITY HALL & POLICE 86,388 4,751.34$        0.055$            6,435.91$      0.0745$           5,174.64$      0.0599$          

52-4 DISTRICT COURT 29,000 2,610.00$        0.090$            2,001.00$      0.0690$           2,523.00$      0.0870$          

COMMUNITY CENTER 97,835 10,761.85$      0.110$            9,587.83$          0.0980$           10,517.26$    0.1075$          

LIBRARY 44,500 2,670.00$        0.060$            3,115.00$      0.0700$           3,110.55$      0.0699$          

 Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $     20,793.19  $   21,139.74  $   21,325.45 
Yearly Total of Group 1:  $   249,518.28  $ 253,676.88  $ 255,905.44 
CASUAL-  22,724 Hrs x Regular Time; 289,731.00$        255,645.00$      272,688.00$      
CASUAL - Holiday Time  x 96 HRS 1,224.00$            1,632.00$          1,248.00$          
GRAND TOTAL -W/CASUAL - GROUP 1: 540,473.28$     510,953.88$  ###########
Group 2:  Garage Facilities

DPW FACILITY 9,500 1,330.00$        0.14$              1,140.00$      0.1200$           1,805.00$      0.19$              

P&R GARAGE 1,781 552.11$           0.31$              498.68$         0.2800$           614.45$         0.345$            

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $       1,882.11  $     1,638.68  $     2,419.45 
Yearly Total of Group 2:  $     22,585.32  $   19,664.16  $   29,033.40 
Group 3:  
Enrichment Facilities
MUSEUM 5X / Week 759.22$           0.07$              845.99$         0.0780$           1,084.60$      0.10$              

10,846
LLOYD STAGE 3X / Week 654.72$           0.08$              

NATURE CENTER 8,184 793.85$         0.0970$           638.35$         0.078$            

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $       1,413.94  $     1,639.84  $     1,722.95 
Yearly Total of Group 3  $     16,967.28  $   19,678.08  $   20,675.40 
Nature Center - 1,040 Hrs x Regular Time; 13,260.00$          11,700.00$        12,480.00$        
GRAND TOTAL -W/CASUAL - GROUP 3: 30,227.28$       31,378.08$     33,155.40$     
Group 4:  Fire Sites
FIRE HALLS:
1 (Tuesday and Friday) 2,175 261.00$           0.12$              289.28$         0.1330$           369.75$         0.17$              

2 (Monday and Thursday) 2,320 278.40$           0.12$              308.56$         0.1330$           394.40$         0.17$              

3 (Tuesday and Friday) 3,000 360.00$           0.12$              399.00$         0.1330$           510.00$         0.17$              

4 (Tuesday and Friday) 1,914 229.68$           0.12$              254.56$         0.1330$           325.38$         0.17$              

5 (Monday and Thursday) 3,000 360.00$           0.12$              399.00$         0.1330$           510.00$         0.17$              

6 (Monday and Thursday) 1,920 230.40$           0.12$              255.36$         0.1330$           326.40$         0.17$              

FIRE/ POLICE TRAINING 6,915 1,728.75$        0.25$              1,058.00$      0.1530$           1,521.30$      0.22$              

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP 3,448.23$        2,963.75$      3,957.23$      
Yearly Total of Group 4: 41,378.76$      35,565.00$    47,486.76$    
Group 5:  Other Sites
SYLVAN GLEN: 2X /  75.00$             0.10$              86.25$           0.1150$           202.50$         0.27$              

Maintenance Bldg. - All Year 750
SYLVAN GLEN GC: 5X / 272.00$           0.16$              241.40$         0.1420$           391.00$         0.23$              

Pro Shop (9 mos./yr) 1,700
SANCTUARY LAKE GC: 2X /  71.90$             0.10$              81.97$           0.1140$           201.32$         0.28$              

Maintenance Bldg. - All Year 719
SANCTUARY LAKE GC: 5X / 160.00$           0.16$              142.00$         0.1420$           420.00$         0.42$              

Pro Shop (9 mos./yr) 1,000
ENGINEERING FIELD 2X / Week 235.70$           0.10$              223.92$         0.0950$           259.27$         0.11$              

OFFICE: All Year 2,357
Monthly TOTAL of GROUP 814.60$           775.53$         1,474.09$      
Yearly Total of Group 5: 9,775.20$        ** 9,306.36$       +25% Service Fee 17,689.08$    

28,352.07$          28,157.54$        $2,326.59 30,899.17$     
Yearly Grand Totals - Groups 1 - 5 340,224.84$     337,890.48$      370,790.08$   
GRAND TOTAL - Groups 1-5 w/Causal 644,439.84$     606,867.48$   657,206.08$   

LOCATION

Monthly GRAND TOTAL GROUPS 1 - 5



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 03-06
Opening Date -- 9-23-03 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 10
Date Prepared -- 10/14/03 JANITORIAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:   THIS IS IT  OMNI Facility    Giant Janitorial

CASUAL LABOR:
 City Hall, Courts, Comm.Ctr, Library 
   22,724 Hrs x Regular Time; 289,731.00$  255,645.00$  272,688.00$ 
Holiday Time   96 Hrs 1,224.00$     1,632.00$     1,248.00$     
Nature Center - 1,040 Hrs X Regular Time; 13,260.00$   11,700.00$   12,480.00$   

Regular Time: 12.75$          11.25$          12.00$          
Employee Pay Range: 10.50  to 12.75 8.00  to  8.15 6.50  to  11.00
Holiday Time: 12.75$          17.00$          13.00$          

TOTAL OF CASUAL LABOR: 304,215.00$  268,977.00$  286,416.00$ 

GRAND TOTAL:

RETURN OF BID DEPOSIT Pick Up X X
Mail X

INSURANCE: Can Meet X X X
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y or N Yes Yes   Yes
DATE 9/16/2003 9/11/2003 9/10 & 9/16

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 15 Days Net 30 Days Net 10

WARRANTY: Blank N/A /

EXCEPTIONS: Blank 25% Service Fee for Group 5 Blank
Listed in Bid

ATTEST:
Steve Pallotta
Mary Ann Hayes
Linda Bockstanz

G: Janitiorial Services ITB-COT 03-06



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 03-06
Opening Date -- 9-23-03 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 10
Date Prepared -- 10/14/03 JANITORIAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:    HI -Tech      Clean Care     Kristel Cleaning
CHECK # 961911146 840811902-3 10118551

CHECK AMOUNT 15,150.00$       14,700.00$      15,150.00$     
SQUARE COST / $ PER COST / $ PER COST / $ PER 
FOOTAGE MONTH SQUARE FT. MONTH SQUARE FT. MONTH SQUARE FT.

Group 1:  Civic Center Sites
CITY HALL & POLICE 86,388 7,774.92$       0.09$              5,183.28$      0.06$              6,911.04$      0.08$              

52-4 DISTRICT COURT 29,000 2,900.00$       0.10$              2,900.00$      0.10$              2,320.00$      0.08$              

COMMUNITY CENTER 97,835 8,805.15$       0.09$              9,783.50$      0.10$              11,740.20$    0.12$              

LIBRARY 44,500 3,560.00$       0.08$              3,560.00$      0.08$              3,337.50$      0.075$            

 Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $    23,040.07  $    21,426.78 WAS CLARIFIED BY  $   24,308.74 
Yearly Total of Group 1:  $  276,480.84  $  257,121.36 AUDREA ON 9/26/03  $ 291,704.88 
CASUAL-  22,724 Hrs x Regular Time; 270,415.60$       306,774.00$      272,688.00$      
CASUAL - Holiday Time  x 96 HRS 1,713.60$           768.00$             1,152.00$          
GRAND TOTAL -W/CASUAL - GROUP 1: 548,610.04$     564,663.36$   565,544.88$   
Group 2:  Garage Facilities

DPW FACILITY 9,500 1,235.00$       0.13$              1,472.50$      0.155$            1,330.00$      0.140$            

P&R GARAGE 1,781 231.53$          0.13$              1,424.80$      0.80$              302.77$         0.17$              

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP 1,466.53$       2,897.30$      1,632.77$      
Yearly Total of Group 2:  $    17,598.36  $    34,767.60  $   19,593.24 
Group 3:  
Enrichment Facilities
MUSEUM 5X / Week 759.22$          0.07$              1,301.52$      0.12$              1,518.44$      0.14$              

10,846
LLOYD STAGE 3X / Week
NATURE CENTER 8,184 982.08$          0.12$              982.08$         0.12$              613.80$         0.075$            

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $      1,741.30  $     2,283.60  $     2,132.24 
Yearly Total of Group 3  $    20,895.60  $    27,403.20  $   25,586.88 
Nature Center - 1,040 Hrs x Regular Time; 12,376.00$         14,040.00$        12,480.00$        
GRAND TOTAL -W/CASUAL - GROUP 3: 33,271.60$       41,443.20$      38,066.88$     
Group 4:  Fire Sites
FIRE HALLS:
1 (Tuesday and Friday) 2,175 282.75$          0.13$              435.00$         0.20$              326.25$         0.15$              

2 (Monday and Thursday) 2,320 301.60$          0.13$              464.00$         0.20$              348.00$         0.15$              

3 (Tuesday and Friday) 3,000 390.00$          0.13$              600.00$         0.20$              450.00$         0.15$              

4 (Tuesday and Friday) 1,914 248.82$          0.13$              382.00$         0.20$              287.10$         0.15$              

5 (Monday and Thursday) 3,000 390.00$          0.13$              600.00$         0.20$              450.00$         0.15$              

6 (Monday and Thursday) 1,920 249.60$          0.13$              384.00$         0.20$              288.00$         0.15$              

FIRE/ POLICE TRAINING 6,915 1,521.30$       0.22$              1,452.15$      0.21$              1,037.25$      0.15$              

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP 3,384.07$       4,317.15$      3,186.60$      
Yearly Total of Group 4: 40,608.84$     51,805.80$     38,239.20$    
Group 5:  Other Sites
SYLVAN GLEN: 2X /  112.50$          0.15$              No Bid $                 127.50$         0.17$              

Maintenance Bldg. - All Year 750
SYLVAN GLEN GC: 5X / 289.00$          0.17$              No Bid $                 459.00$         0.27$              

Pro Shop (9 mos./yr) 1,700
SANCTUARY LAKE GC: 2X /  115.04$          0.16$              No Bid $                 122.23$         0.17$              

Maintenance Bldg. - All Year 719
SANCTUARY LAKE GC: 5X / 290.00$          0.29$              No Bid $                 450.00$         0.45$              

Pro Shop (9 mos./yr) 1,000
ENGINEERING FIELD 2X / Week 235.70$          0.10$              No Bid $                 235.70$         0.10$              

OFFICE: All Year 2,357
Monthly TOTAL of GROUP 1,042.24$       No Bid 1,394.43$      
Yearly Total of Group 5: 12,506.88$     0 16,733.16$     

30,674.21$         N/A 32,654.78$        
Yearly Grand Totals - Groups 1 - 5 368,090.52$       N/A 391,857.36$      
GRAND TOTAL - Groups 1-5 w/Causal 652,595.72$     N/A 678,177.36$   

LOCATION

Monthly GRAND TOTAL GROUPS 1 - 5



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 03-06
Opening Date -- 9-23-03 BID TABULATION Pg 6 of 10
Date Prepared -- 10/14/03 JANITORIAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:    HI -Tech    Clean Care  Kristel Cleaning

CASUAL LABOR:
 City Hall, Courts, Comm.Ctr, Library 
   22,724 Hrs x Regular Time; 270,415.60$  306,774.00$  272,688.00$ 
Holiday Time   96 Hrs 1,713.60$     768.00$        1,152.00$     
Nature Center - 1,040 Hrs X Regular Time; 12,376.00$   14,040.00$   12,480.00$   

Regular Time: 11.90$          13.50$          12.00$          
Employee Pay Range: 8.00  to 9.00 7.00  to 11.00 8.00  to 12.00
Holiday Time: 17.85$          8.00$            12.00$          

TOTAL OF CASUAL LABOR: 284,505.20$  321,582.00$  286,320.00$ 

GRAND TOTAL:

RETURN OF BID DEPOSIT Pick Up Blank X
Mail X Blank

INSURANCE: Can Meet X X X
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y or N Yes No Yes
DATE 9/11/2003 9/11/2003

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 30 Days 30 Days/Net Blank

WARRANTY: Yes Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: All or None award Blank N/A

ATTEST:
Steve Pallotta
Mary Ann Hayes
Linda Bockstanz

G: Janitiorial Services ITB-COT 03-06

Current Contractor



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 03-06
Opening Date -- 9-23-03 BID TABULATION Pg 7 of 10
Date Prepared -- 10/14/03 JANITORIAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:     SABER      ABM Jantorial   At Your Service Cleaning
CHECK # 698787165 875227425-3

CHECK AMOUNT 12,000.00$       15,150.00$      15,150.00$      
SQUARE COST / $ PER COST / $ PER COST / $ PER 
FOOTAGE MONTH SQUARE FT. MONTH SQUARE FT. MONTH SQUARE FT.

Group 1:  Civic Center Sites
CITY HALL & POLICE 86,388 6,219.94$       0.0720$           7,170.20$      0.083$            10,107.40$     0.1170$          

52-4 DISTRICT COURT 29,000 2,436.00$       0.0840$           3,596.00$      0.124$            3,161.00$       0.1090$          

COMMUNITY CENTER 97,835 8,707.32$       0.0890$           9,783.50$      0.10$              9,587.83$       0.0980$          

LIBRARY 44,500 3,871.50$       0.0870$           4,450.00$      0.10$              5,918.50$       0.1330$          

 Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $     21,234.75  $    24,999.70  $    28,774.73 
Yearly Total of Group 1:  $   254,817.01  $  299,996.40  $  345,296.71 
CASUAL-  22,724 Hrs x Regular Time; 318,136.00$        274,278.68$      295,184.76$       
CASUAL - Holiday Time  x 96 HRS 1,728.00$            1,728.00$          1,775.04$           
GRAND TOTAL -W/CASUAL - GROUP 1: 574,681.01$     576,003.08$   642,256.51$    
Group 2:  Garage Facilities

DPW FACILITY 9,500 No Bid -$                2,194.50$      0.231$            2,736.00$       0.288$            

P&R GARAGE 1,781  No Bid -$                1,259.17$      0.707$            537.86$          0.302$            

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  No Bid 3,453.67$       $      3,273.86 
Yearly Total of Group 2: 0  $    41,444.04  $    39,286.34 
Group 3:  
Enrichment Facilities
MUSEUM 5X / Week No Bid -$                770.07$         0.071$            1,052.06$       0.097              

10,846
LLOYD STAGE 3X / Week No Bid -$              491.04$         0.06$              

NATURE CENTER 8,184 867.50$          0.106              

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  No Bid  $     1,261.11  $      1,919.57 
Yearly Total of Group 3 0  $    15,133.27  $    23,034.79 
Nature Center - 1,040 Hrs x Regular Time; 14,560.00$          12,552.80$        13,509.60$         
GRAND TOTAL -W/CASUAL - GROUP 3: 14,560.00$       27,686.07$      36,544.39$      
Group 4:  Fire Sites
FIRE HALLS: -$                

1 (Tuesday and Friday) 2,175 No Bid -$                152.25$         0.07$              289.28$          0.133$            

2 (Monday and Thursday) 2,320 No Bid -$                178.64$         0.077$            285.36$          0.123$            

3 (Tuesday and Friday) 3,000 No Bid -$                231.00$         0.077$            354.00$          0.118$            

4 (Tuesday and Friday) 1,914 No Bid -$                153.12$         0.08$              273.70$          0.143$            

5 (Monday and Thursday) 3,000 No Bid -$                204.00$         0.068$            354.00$          0.118$            

6 (Monday and Thursday) 1,920 No Bid -$                153.60$         0.08$              268.80$          0.140$            

FIRE/ POLICE TRAINING 6,915 No Bid 1,535.13$      0.222$            1,002.68$       0.145$            

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP No Bid 2,607.74$      2,827.81$       
Yearly Total of Group 4: 0 31,292.88$     33,933.74$     
Group 5:  Other Sites -$                

SYLVAN GLEN: 2X /  No Bid 54.75$           0.073$            219.00$          0.292$            

Maintenance Bldg. - All Year 750 -$                

SYLVAN GLEN GC: 5X / No Bid 384.20$         0.226$            402.90$          0.237$            

Pro Shop (9 mos./yr) 1,700 -$                

SANCTUARY LAKE GC: 2X /  No Bid 51.05$           0.071$            212.82$          0.296$            

Maintenance Bldg. - All Year 719 -$                

SANCTUARY LAKE GC: 5X / No Bid 256.00$         0.256$            378.00$          0.378$            

Pro Shop (9 mos./yr) 1,000 -$                

ENGINEERING FIELD 2X / Week No Bid 153.21$         0.065$            263.98$          0.112$            

OFFICE: All Year 2,357
Monthly TOTAL of GROUP No Bid 899.20$         1,476.71$       
Yearly Total of Group 5: 0 10,790.45$     17,720.50$     

 N/A 33,221.42$        38,272.67$         
Yearly Grand Totals - Groups 1 - 5 N/A 398,657.04$      459,272.09$       
GRAND TOTAL - Groups 1-5 w/Causal N/A 687,216.52$    769,741.49$    

LOCATION

Monthly GRAND TOTAL GROUPS 1 - 5

NO CHECK/See Letter 



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 03-06
Opening Date -- 9-23-03 BID TABULATION Pg 8 of 10
Date Prepared -- 10/14/03 JANITORIAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:
SABER ABM Janitorial   At Your Service Cleaning

CASUAL LABOR:
 City Hall, Courts, Comm.Ctr, Library 
   22,724 Hrs x Regular Time; 318,136.00$  274,278.68$  295,184.76$ 
Holiday Time   96 Hrs 1,728.00$     1,728.00$     1,775.04$     
Nature Center - 1,040 Hrs X Regular Time; 14,560.00$   12,552.80$   13,509.60$   

Regular Time: 14.00$          12.07$          12.99$          
Employee Pay Range: 8.00  to  11.00 7.00  to  12.00 9.00  to  10.00
Holiday Time: 18.00$          18.00$          18.49$          

TOTAL OF CASUAL LABOR: 334,424.00$  288,559.48$  310,469.40$ 

GRAND TOTAL:

RETURN OF BID DEPOSIT Pick Up X
Mail X X

INSURANCE: Can Meet X X X
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y or N   Yes Yes   Yes
DATE 9/11/2003 9/11/2003 9/11/2003

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes Yes

TERMS: Option #1 Blank Net 15 Days

WARRANTY: Blank Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank ABM based its proposal on All or None Award
being awarded all locations

ATTEST:
Steve Pallotta
Mary Ann Hayes
Linda Bockstanz

G: Janitiorial Services ITB-COT 03-06



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 03-06
Opening Date -- 9-23-03 BID TABULATION Pg 9 of 10
Date Prepared -- 10/14/03 JANITORIAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:    24/7  365 Inc Corporate Cleaning
CHECK # 840811903-2 5733124716/5733124727 Five(5) Int'l Money Orders

CHECK AMOUNT 14,700.00$       900.00$          450.00$        2,250.00$       
SQUARE COST / $ PER COST / $ PER COST / $ PER 
FOOTAGE MONTH SQUARE FT. MONTH SQUARE FT. MONTH SQUARE FT.

Group 1:  Civic Center Sites
CITY HALL & POLICE 86,388 14,685.96$     0.17$              No Bid -$              No Bid -$            

52-4 DISTRICT COURT 29,000 2,610.00$       0.09$              No Bid -$              No Bid -$            

COMMUNITY CENTER 97,835 12,229.38$         0.125$            No Bid -$            No Bid -$            

LIBRARY 44,500 5,562.50$       0.125$            No Bid -$              No Bid -$            

 Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $    35,087.84 WAS CLARIFIED BY  No Bid  No Bid 
Yearly Total of Group 1:  $  421,054.08 AUDREA ON 9/26/03 0 0
CASUAL-  22,724 Hrs x Regular Time; 294,048.56$       -$                  -$                   
CASUAL - Holiday Time  x 96 HRS 936.00$              -$                  -$                   
GRAND TOTAL -W/CASUAL - GROUP 1:  $716,038.64 -$               -$               
Group 2:  Garage Facilities

DPW FACILITY 9,500 1,330.00$       0.14$              No Bid -$                1,045.00$      0.11$              

P&R GARAGE 1,781 516.49$          0.29$              No Bid -$                356.20$         0.20$              

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $      1,846.49  No Bid  $     1,401.20 
Yearly Total of Group 2:  $    22,157.88 0  $   16,814.40 => DMS

Group 3:  
Enrichment Facilities
MUSEUM 5X / Week 1,193.06$       0.11$              867.68$         0.080$            No Bid -$                

10,846
LLOYD STAGE 3X / Week
NATURE CENTER 8,184 900.24$          0.11$              1,145.76$      0.14$              No Bid -$              

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP  $      2,093.30  $     2,013.44  No Bid 
Yearly Total of Group 3  $    25,119.60  $   24,161.28 0
Nature Center - 1,040 Hrs x Regular Time; 13,457.60$         14,040.00$        -$                   
GRAND TOTAL -W/CASUAL - GROUP 3: 38,577.20$       38,201.28$     -$                
Group 4:  Fire Sites
FIRE HALLS:
1 (Tuesday and Friday) 2,175 304.50$          0.14$              No Bid -$                217.50$         0.10$              

2 (Monday and Thursday) 2,320 324.80$          0.14$              No Bid -$                232.00$         0.10$              

3 (Tuesday and Friday) 3,000 420.00$          0.14$              No Bid -$                300.00$         0.10$              

4 (Tuesday and Friday) 1,914 267.96$          0.14$              No Bid -$                191.40$         0.10$              

5 (Monday and Thursday) 3,000 420.00$          0.14$              No Bid -$                300.00$         0.10$              

6 (Monday and Thursday) 1,920 268.80$          0.14$              No Bid -$                192.00$         0.10$              

FIRE/ POLICE TRAINING 6,915 1,037.25$       0.15$              No Bid -$                760.65$         0.11$              

Monthly TOTAL of GROUP 3,043.31$       No Bid 2,193.55$      
Yearly Total of Group 4: 36,519.72$     0 26,322.60$    
Group 5:  Other Sites
SYLVAN GLEN: 2X /  No Bid $                 97.50$           0.13$              90.00$           0.12$              

Maintenance Bldg. - All Year 750 0
SYLVAN GLEN GC: 5X / No Bid $                 289.00$         0.17$              204.00$         0.12$              

Pro Shop (9 mos./yr) 1,700 0
SANCTUARY LAKE GC: 2X /  No Bid $                 100.66$         0.14$              71.90$           0.10$              

Maintenance Bldg. - All Year 719 0
SANCTUARY LAKE GC: 5X / No Bid $                 150.00$         0.15$              110.00$         0.11$              

Pro Shop (9 mos./yr) 1,000 0
ENGINEERING FIELD 2X / Week No Bid $                 259.27$         0.11$              235.70$         0.10$              

OFFICE: All Year 2,357 0
Monthly TOTAL of GROUP No Bid 896.43$         711.60$         
Yearly Total of Group 5: 0 10,757.16$         $     8,539.20 => DMS

N/A N/A N/A
Yearly Grand Totals - Groups 1 - 5 N/A N/A N/A
GRAND TOTAL - Groups 1-5 w/Causal N/A N/A N/A

CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 03-06

LOCATION

Monthly GRAND TOTAL GROUPS 1 - 5

Group 2 - DMS

Group 5 - DMS

European Best Cleaning



Opening Date -- 9-23-03 BID TABULATION Pg 10 of 10
Date Prepared -- 10/14/03 JANITORIAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:      24/7  365 Inc.    Corporate Cleaning

CASUAL LABOR:
 City Hall, Courts, Comm.Ctr, Library 
   22,724 Hrs x Regular Time; 294,048.56$  -$              -$              
Holiday Time   96 Hrs 936.00$        -$              0
Nature Center - 1,040 Hrs X Regular Time; 13,457.60$   14,040.00$   -$              

Regular Time: 12.94$          13.50$          Blank
Employee Pay Range: 6.50  to  8.50 Blank Blank
Holiday Time: 9.75$            20.25$          Blank

TOTAL OF CASUAL LABOR: 308,442.16$  14,040.00$   -$              

GRAND TOTAL:

RETURN OF BID DEPOSIT Pick Up X Blank Blank
Mail Blank Blank

INSURANCE: Can Meet X X X
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y or N Yes Yes   Yes
DATE 9/18/2003 9/17/2003

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes Yes

TERMS: 30 Days Net Blank Blank

WARRANTY: Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

DMS:
 European Best Cleaning - Group 2 ($16,814.40); Group 5 ($8,539.20)
    Reason: Lack of Equipment, failure to pass site visit inspection, inaccurate reference information

NO BIDS:
  Commercial Building Mtnce
  Speed Clean Service
  Right Way Janitorial

ATTEST:
Steve Pallotta
Mary Ann Hays
Linda Bockstanz

G: Janitiorial Services ITB-COT 03-06

Many Occasions

Attached to Bid

European Best Cleaning



campbellld
Text Box
E-06















campbellld
Text Box
E-07









campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
E-08













































campbellld
Text Box
F-02





CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 42 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 42 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Chapter 42, Floodplain Management Ordinance designating an enforcing agency to 
discharge the responsibility of the City of Troy located in Oakland County, under the 
provisions of the State Construction Code Act, Act No. 230 of the Public Acts of 1972, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: (Underlining denotes additions) 
 
10. Agency Designated 
 
 Pursuant to the provisions of the state construction code, in accordance with 

Section 8b(6) of Act 230, of the Public Acts of 1972, as amended, the Building 
Department of the City of Troy is hereby designated as the enforcing agency to 
discharge the responsibility of the City of Troy under Act 230, of the Public Acts 
of 1972, as amended, State of Michigan. The City of Troy assumes responsibility 
for the administration and enforcement of said Act through out its corporate 
limits. 

 
11. Code Appendix Enforced 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the state construction code, in accordance with 
Section 8(b) of Act 230, of the Public Acts of 1972, as amended, Appendix G of 
the Michigan Building Code shall be enforced by the enforcing agency within the 
City of Troy. 

 
12. Designation of Regulated Flood Prone Hazard Areas 
 

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Study 
(FIS) entitled Oakland County Michigan and Incorporated Areas and dated 
September 29 2006 and the Flood Insurance Rate Maps(s) (FIRMS) panel 
numbers of are adopted by reference and declared to be a part of Section 1612.3 
of the Michigan Building Code. 

 



C:\Documents and Settings\campbellld\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLK15\091806 CHAPT042-Notice.doc 

  

2

Section 3. Repeals. 
 
All ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
________ day of ______________, 2006. 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



Chapter 42- Flood Plain Management 

 1

 
FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT 

 
1. Purpose 
 
 (1) It is the purpose of this Ordinance to protect human life, health, and property from flood 

conditions, to preserve the ability of floodplains to carry and discharge a base flood, and 
to significantly reduce potential hazards as a result of flood conditions within the City of 
Troy.  Further, it is the purpose of this Ordinance to comply with the provisions and 
requirements of the National Flood Insurance Program, as constituted in accord with the 
National Flood Insurance Act, and subsequent enactments and rules and regulations. 

 
 (2) Additional objectives of this Article include: 
 
  (a) Reducing public/private economic loss and social disruption as a result of 

 flood conditions. 
 
  (b) Minimizing public expenditures for:   
 
   (i) flood control projects, 
 
   (ii) rescue and relief efforts in the aftermath of flooding, 
 
   (iii) repair of flood damaged public facilities and utilities, and 
 
   (iv) the redevelopment of flood damaged homes, neighborhoods, commercial 

and industrial areas; 
 
    (a) providing the Public with the most current floodplain information; 
and  
 
    (b) promote development patterns not subject to flood damage. 
 
2. Definitions 
 
 (1) Area of Special Flood Hazard is the land in the flood plain within a community subject to 

a one percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year.  This area is designated 
as Zone A or Zones A1-A30 on the Flood Insurance Rate Map. 

 
 (2) Base Flood means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded 

in any given year; also known as the 100-year flood. 
 
 (3) Development means any man-made modification to unimproved or improved real estate, 

including but not limited to:  buildings, pools, decks or other structures, mining, dredging, 
filling, grading, paving, excavation, or drilling operations or storage of equipment or 
materials. 

 
 (4) Encroachment means development or a structure which is located within the area of 

special flood hazard. 
(2-1-99) 



Chapter 42- Flood Plain Management 

 2

 
 (5) Flood or Flooding means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete 

inundation of normally dry land areas from: 
 
  (a) the overflow of inland or tidal waters, 
 
  (b) the unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source. 

 
 (6) Flood Damage means any damage to persons, materials, supplies, property or real 

estate caused by and as a direct result of flooding and /or the influence of flood 
conditions. 

 
 (7) Boundary and Floodway Map means an official map of a community, issued by the 

Federal Emergency Management Agency, where the boundaries of the areas of special 
flood hazards have been designated as Zone A. 

 
 (8) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) means an official map of a community, on which the 

Federal Emergency Management Agency has delineated both the areas of special flood 
hazards and the risk premium zones applicable to the community.  

 
 (9) Flood Insurance Study (Flood Elevation Study) is an examination, evaluation and 

determination of flood hazards and corresponding water surface elevations. 
 
 (10) Floodplain means that land area possessing the potential to be inundated by water from 

a flood or flooding. 
 
 (11) Floodway or Regulatory Floodway means the designated area of a river or other 

watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved from development or 
construction activity in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing 
the water surface elevation beyond these areas. 

 
 (12) New Construction means structures and/or development for which the “start of 

construction” commenced on or after the effective date of this ordinance, and includes 
any subsequent improvements to structures. 

 
 (13) Structure means a walled and roofed building that is principally above ground. 
 
 (14) Substantial Improvement means any repair, reconstruction, addition, or other 

improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the 
market value of the structure either,  

 
  (a) before the improvement or repair is started; or 
 
  (b) if the structure has been damaged and is being restored, before the damage 

occurred. 
 
  For the purposes of this definition, “substantial improvement” is considered to occur 

when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building 
commences, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the 
structure.  The term does not, however, include either: 

  (2-1-99) 



Chapter 42- Flood Plain Management 

 3

 
  (a) any project for improvement of a structure to comply with existing state or  local 

health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which are the minimum necessary 
to assure safe living conditions, or 

 
  (b) any alteration of a structure listed on the National Register of Historic Places or a 

State Inventory of Historic Places.  
 
 (15) Watercourse means any natural or artificial drainage way wherein waters flow either 

continuously or intermittently, including any adjacent areas subject to flooding.  
Watercourses include both natural and man-made open ditches, streams, enclosed 
storm drains, lakes, and ponds. 

 
3. Delineation of the Area of Special Flood Hazard 

 
The area of special flood hazard shall overlay existing zoning districts delineated on the official 
City of Troy Zoning Map.  The boundaries of the area of special flood hazard shall coincide with 
the boundaries of the areas indicated as within the limits of the 100-year flood in the most 
current report entitled “The Flood Insurance Study, City of Troy”, as specified by the City 
Engineer, with accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps and Flood Hazard Boundary Maps 
and Floodway Maps.  Within the area of special flood hazard a floodway may be designated.  
The boundaries of the floodway shall coincide with the floodway boundaries indicated on the 
Flood Hazard Boundary Maps and Floodway Maps.  The Flood Insurance Study and 
accompanying maps are adopted by reference, appended, and declared to be a part of this 
ordinance. 
 

4. Development Requirements 
 
 (1) The owner shall not perform any development nor shall the owner allow others to 

perform any development of any property within an area of special flood hazard without 
first having secured a development permit(s).  Necessary development permits shall 
have been issued by appropriate local, state and federal authorities, including but not 
limited to:  a floodplain permit, approval, or letter of no authority from the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality. 

 
 (2) Approval of any development is also subject to the provisions of this ordinance and all 

other requirements of the Troy City Code. 
 
5. General Standards for Flood Hazard Reduction 
 
 (1) All new construction and substantial improvements within an area of special flood 

hazard, shall be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage 
including, but not limited to: 

 
  (a) be designed and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of 

the structure; 
 
  (b) be constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage; 
 
  (c) all new and replacement water supply systems shall not allow infiltration of flood 

waters into the systems; 
(2-1-99) 



Chapter 42- Flood Plain Management 

 4

 
  (d) all public utilities and facilities shall be designed, constructed and located to 

minimize or eliminate flood damage. 
 
  (e) drainage shall be provided to reduce damage to structures created by flood 

hazards. 
 
 (2) The City Engineer or his/her representative shall review development proposals to 

determine compliance with the standards in this section. 
 
6. Specific Base Flood Elevation Standards 
 
 (1) On the basis of the most recent available base flood elevation data the following 

standards shall apply in the area of special flood hazard: 
 

  (a) all new construction and substantial improvements of residential structures shall 
have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the base flood 
level.  This requirement shall apply for residential properties removed from the 
area of special flood hazard by the placement of fill, regardless of FEMA Letter of 
Map Revision determinations. 

 
  (b) all new construction and substantial improvements of nonresidential structures 

shall have either: 
 
   (i) the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the base flood 

elevation; or 
 
   (ii) be constructed such that below base flood elevation, together with 

 attendant utility and sanitary facilities: 
 
    (a) the structure is watertight, with walls impermeable to the passage 

of water; and 
 
    (b) is constructed with structural components having the ability to 

neutralize hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads; and 
 
    (c) the effects of buoyancy must be resisted. 

 
A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the standards of this 
subparagraph are satisfied, and that the floodproofing methods employed are adequate 
to withstand the flood depth, pressures, velocities, impact and uplift forces and other 
factors associated with a base flood in the location of the structure.  Such certification 
shall be submitted to the City Engineer, and shall indicate the elevation to which the 
structure is floodproofed. 

 
 (2) The most recent base flood elevation data received from the Federal Emergency 

Management Agency shall take precedence over data from other sources. 
 
  (2-1-99) 



Chapter 42- Flood Plain Management 

 5

 
7. Flood Zone Development Standards 
 
 (1) New construction, substantial improvements and all other development, shall be 

prohibited within areas of special flood hazard except where the owner demonstrates 
that the cumulative effect of the proposed development when combined with all other 
existing and anticipated development will not increase the water surface elevation and/or 
decrease the flood carrying capacity of a base flood. In addition, the provisions of 
subsection 2) shall be applied to land situated within the floodway.   

 
 (2) Encroachments, new construction, substantial improvements and development shall be 

prohibited within the floodway.  Exception to this prohibition shall only be made upon 
certification by a registered professional engineer or the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality that the proposed development will not result in any increases in 
base flood elevation during a base flood discharge. 

 
8. Disputes and Conflict 
 
 (1) Where there are disputes as to the location of an area of special flood hazard boundary, 

the property owner or permit applicant shall provide field measurements, topographic 
data, and any other specified data to assist the designated state and/or federal agencies 
in the resolution of the dispute.  The property owner or permit applicant shall be 
responsible for the application fees, engineering, surveying, or other costs associated 
with the preparation of materials required to assist with the area of special flood hazard 
boundary dispute. 

 
 (2) The requirements of the Floodplain Management ordinance apply to all development 

within the area of special flood hazard.  If there is a conflict between the Flood Plain 
Management ordinances and other provisions of the City of Troy Ordinances, the most 
stringent requirements shall be applied, to accomplish the intent of this ordinance. 

 
9. Disclaimer of Liability 
 
 The degree of flood protection required by this Ordinance is considered reasonable for 

regulatory purposes and is based upon National and State regulations and standards.  Larger 
floods and increased flood elevations may occur on occasions.  Approval of the use of land, 
construction and/or development under this Ordinance shall not be considered a guarantee or 
warranty of safety or damage from flood events.  This Ordinance does not imply that areas 
outside the area of special flood hazard will be free from flood damage, nor does this Ordinance 
create liability on the part of the City of Troy or any officer or employees thereof for any flood 
damages that result from reliance on this Ordinance or any administrative decision lawfully 
made thereunder. 

 
 (2-1-99) 
 
10. Agency Designated 
 
 Pursuant to the provisions of the state construction code, in accordance with Section 8b(6) of 

Act 230, of the Public Acts of 1972, as amended, the Building Department of the City of Troy is 
hereby designated as the enforcing agency to discharge the responsibility of the City of Troy 
under Act 230, of the Public Acts of 1972, as amended, State of Michigan. The City of Troy 
assumes responsibility for the administration and enforcement of said Act through out its 
corporate limits. 

 
 



Chapter 42- Flood Plain Management 

 6

11. Code Appendix Enforced 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the state construction code, in accordance with Section 8(b) of Act 
230, of the Public Acts of 1972, as amended, Appendix G of the Michigan Building Code shall 
be enforced by the enforcing agency within the City of Troy. 

 
12. Designation of Regulated Flood Prone Hazard Areas 
 

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Study (FIS) entitled 
Oakland County Michigan and Incorporated Areas and dated September 29 2006. and the 
Flood Insurance Rate Maps(s) (FIRMS) panel numbers of are adopted by reference and 
declared to be a part of Section 1612.3 of the Michigan Building Code. 

 
 







ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        June 1, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, June 1 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:05 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member David Ogg, Member 
 Frank Shier, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 JoAnn Thompson Pauline Noce, Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: James Berar, Member excused    
   
Visitors:  Jeff Biegler 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-6-001 
Moved by David Ogg  
Seconded by Merrill Dixon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of May 4, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Jeff Biegler reported that there were no bids in April.  This 
was a very busy time for many contractors.  A new bid is going out next week and bidders will 
have four weeks to respond.  It is still expected that the facility will be built this year.   
 
Golf Leagues:  Carla reported that representatives from the three golf leagues have had two 
meetings with Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy and Parks and Recreation staff and they 
are working things out regarding the issues brought up at last month’s meeting.  
  
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that a one-year contract has 
been approved and there is now a reduced price menu for non-profit groups.  A copy of this 
menu was handed out. 
 
David Ogg reported that groups can use the meeting rooms at the Police and Fire Training 
Center for free and can bring their own food in there. 
 
New Business 
 
Cancellation of July and August meetings:   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        June 1, 2006 

2 

 
Resolution # SC-2006-6-002 
Moved by David Ogg  
Seconded by Joanne Thompson 
 
RESOLVED That the July and August meetings be cancelled. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board reviewed the budget and that it was 
announced that the non-resident fee at the golf course has been waived for City employees.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that Medi-Go is looking into offering weekend service.  Dialysis 
patients often have appointments on Saturday.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the Parks and Recreation Department has sponsored 
six events to help seniors gain information and to enroll in the Medicare Prescription Drug 
program.  Over 300 seniors attended these events.  The map of outdoor walking routes 
adjacent to the Community Center has been updated and now includes seven routes varying 
in length from .4 mile (around the perimeter of the Community Center) to 2.2 miles (from the 
Community Center to and around the fitness trail and back).  134 people attended the free 
shredding event at the Community Center in May. 
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that they had a speaker from Adapt My Home, a business 
that does barrier free renovations to help seniors age in place.  The Committee would like 
Carla to arrange to have them speak in Troy.  Pauline noted that whatever company a senior 
might choose, they should make sure that they are a certified Aging-In-Place specialist.    
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they met with legislators 
and encouraged them to keep up funding for transportation. 
 
Medicare Part D:  Joann Thompson reported that her pharmacist ran the numbers for her and 
she later signed up, but there are still questions.  David Ogg reported that there is a great 
variance in process among pharmacies.   Additional discussion was held on this topic.   
 
Suggestion Box:  There were no suggestions this month.   In response to a suggestion last 
month, Carla took a poll about organ music on Fridays and the vote was almost evenly divided.   
It was decided to allow organ music on an OCCASIONAL basis, and we can revisit the issue 
again in the future if need be. 
 
Comments:   
 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        June 1, 2006 

3 

 
 
David Ogg reported that the police department is conducting a seat belt sting. 
 
Frank Shier reported that the senior show at the Macomb Center is July 7 and 8. 
 
Joanne Thompson reported that she attended a recent Heart-Of-The-Hills Players 
performance in Warren.  There were lots of people there and it was lots of fun. 
 
Jo Rhoads asked how the hospital equipment loan closet is doing.  Carla reported that more 
wheelchairs and shower chairs are needed. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:15 PM. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL JUNE 6, 2006 
 
This rescheduled meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held 
Tuesday, June 6, 2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called 
to order at 7:37 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Kevin Lindsey 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Paul Lin 
   Linda Rivetto 
   Bob Miller 
 
  ABSENT: Marjorie Biglin 
    
     STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
     GUEST: Carl Freeman 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2006-06-001 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Biglin be excused  
Yes: 6 Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Lin Rivetto, and Miller 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2006-06-002 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Hupman 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of May 23, 2006 be approved as amended  
Yes: 6 Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Lin Rivetto, and Miller  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 2955 Quail Run Dr 
Loraine Campbell reported that the city attorney’s office reviewed and affirmed 
their memo of March 14, 2006 regarding the Request to Eliminate the Historic 
District at 2955 Quail Run.  They maintain that the procedures followed upon the 
initial designation were in compliance with both state and local law. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



2 

The committee also continued to review information provided by Mr. and Mrs. 
Freeman regarding modifications to the original structure by former owner 
Alexander Copland and other owners. 
 
The next task of the committee will be to decide if a preliminary report to de-list 
the property should be written and submitted for local and state review. 
 

B. New Above Ground Survey Assignments 
Committee members are working on their Above Ground Survey assignments. 

  
 
 

The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 9:00 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, August 8, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  

 
 
 
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
AUGUST 2, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, August 2, 2006, at the upper level Conference Room C at City Hall.  
The meeting was called to order at 6:59 p.m. 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member S. Burt, member 
   A. Done, member  A. Fuhrman, alternate  
   P. Hammond, member T. House, member   
   G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member 
   D. Pietron, member  J. Stewart, member 
   C. Weidman, student S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent:         M. Apte, alternate, EA 
 
ITEM C – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF June 7, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of June 7, 2006 be approved.  Supported 
by Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM D – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Carlene Geier, Troy resident,  Red Hughes, Troy resident, and members of the Senior 
Advisory Committee attended our meeting  or were present during the AutoMARK 
demonstration.  The meeting was moved to the City Council Chambers where Tonni 
Bartholomew, City Clerk, and Barb Holmes, Deputy City Clerk, demonstrated the 
AutoMARK ballot marking device and showed a video regarding sensitivity training for 
election inspectors at the polling locations.  Members were given an opportunity to try 
the machine and have their questions answered regarding usage.   
 
ITEM E – NEW BUSINESS 
Werpetinski made a motion to elect Jeff Stewart as Chairperson for this Committee for a 
period of one year, seconded by Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM F – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Werpetinski will attend the 8/14 and Furhman, the 8/28 Council Meetings. 
 
ITEM G – COMMITTEE MEMBER COUNCIL MEETING REPORT 
Werpetinski reported that the decision on Group Child Care Homes becoming ADA 
compliant is still pending. 
 
ITEM H - OLD BUSINESS 
The discussion on restructuring our agenda regarding visitor comments was tabled until 
September. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
AUGUST 2, 2006 

 2

 
Grusnick reported that Community Affairs agreed to modify and reproduce the ACPD 
brochures.  It was suggested that higher contrast colors be used and that the Face to 
Face brochure also be considered for re-printing.  Members agreed to review both 
brochures for revisions and draft a finalized brochure at our next meeting in September. 
 
ITEM I - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Adam Furhman will be attending college courses on Wednesday evenings from 
September through December.  A motion was made by Buchanan to excuse Adam from 
these meetings, seconded by Manetta.  All voted in favor. 
 
Troy Public Library Outreach Program flyers were distributed to all members.  This 
Program provides delivery of library materials to people confined to their home. 
 
ITEM J – ADJOURN 
Burt made a motion to adjourn at 9:16 which was seconded by Manetta. 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                       Angie Done, Acting Chairperson 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
AUGUST 2, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, August 2, 2006, at the upper level Conference Room C at City Hall.  
The meeting was called to order at 6:59 p.m. 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member S. Burt, member 
   A. Done, member  A. Fuhrman, alternate  
   P. Hammond, member T. House, member   
   G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member 
   D. Pietron, member  J. Stewart, member 
   C. Weidman, student S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent:         M. Apte, alternate, EA 
 
ITEM C – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF June 7, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of June 7, 2006 be approved.  Supported 
by Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM D – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Carlene Geier, Troy resident,  Red Hughes, Troy resident, and members of the Senior 
Advisory Committee attended our meeting  or were present during the AutoMARK 
demonstration.  The meeting was moved to the City Council Chambers where Tonni 
Bartholomew, City Clerk, and Barb Holmes, Deputy City Clerk, demonstrated the 
AutoMARK ballot marking device and showed a video regarding sensitivity training for 
election inspectors at the polling locations.  Members were given an opportunity to try 
the machine and have their questions answered regarding usage.   
 
ITEM E – NEW BUSINESS 
Werpetinski made a motion to elect Jeff Stewart as Chairperson for this Committee for a 
period of one year, seconded by Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM F – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Werpetinski will attend the 8/14 and Furhman, the 8/28 Council Meetings. 
 
ITEM G – COMMITTEE MEMBER COUNCIL MEETING REPORT 
Werpetinski reported that the decision on Group Child Care Homes becoming ADA 
compliant is still pending. 
 
ITEM H - OLD BUSINESS 
The discussion on restructuring our agenda regarding visitor comments was tabled until 
September. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
AUGUST 2, 2006 

 2

 
Grusnick reported that Community Affairs agreed to modify and reproduce the ACPD 
brochures.  It was suggested that higher contrast colors be used and that the Face to 
Face brochure also be considered for re-printing.  Members agreed to review both 
brochures for revisions and draft a finalized brochure at our next meeting in September. 
 
ITEM I - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Adam Furhman will be attending college courses on Wednesday evenings from 
September through December.  A motion was made by Buchanan to excuse Adam from 
these meetings, seconded by Manetta.  All voted in favor. 
 
Troy Public Library Outreach Program flyers were distributed to all members.  This 
Program provides delivery of library materials to people confined to their home. 
 
ITEM J – ADJOURN 
Burt made a motion to adjourn at 9:16 which was seconded by Manetta. 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                       Angie Done, Acting Chairperson 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Sept. 7, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Sept. 
7 2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:05 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member David Ogg, Member 
 Frank Shier, Member Mary Sarossy, Member 
 JoAnn Thompson, Member Pauline Noce, Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member James Berar, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: Jo Rhoads, Member, excused     
   
Visitors:  Carol Anderson, Peggy Hammond, Susan Werpetinski, Dorothy Pietron, Carlene 

Geier, Wes Myers, Harold Stephenson, Mildred Myers, Ed Forst, Gloria 
Weisgerber, Bill Weisgerber, Steven Banch  

   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-9-001 
Moved by JoAnn Thompson  
Seconded by David Ogg  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of June 1, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 8       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carol Anderson reported that the project was rebid, and two 
bids were received.    One will be recommended for approval at the Sept. 18 City Council 
meeting and it is expected that the courts will be built this fall.  James Berar commented that it 
should be stressed that the courts are for all ages.  JoAnn Thompson encouraged committee 
members to attend the council meeting to show their support. 
 
Golf Leagues:  Carla reported that after several meetings, an agreement was reached with 
the golf league officers.   It was determined that league members will not have to pay for a 
minimum number of golfers.   Non-resident golfers will pay the non-resident rate, and there will 
be a $5 per person administrative fee.  Funds will be distributed to the league officers as 
before, but a detailed report of financing will be provided.     
  
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carol Anderson reported that no one bid on the 
new contract for the Community Center, and there was only one bid for the golf course.   A 
revised RFP is going out next week for this contract that expires in May.  A discussion was 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Sept. 7, 2006 

2 

held regarding the future of the senior lunch program.  Mary Sarossy volunteered to 
preliminary investigation of options for the lunch program. 
 
 
New Business 
 
Street Signs:  James Berar stated that the street signs in Troy are hard to read and the 
lettering on any new signs should be bigger.  JoAnn Thompson commented that a different 
color might also be easier to read. 
 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board did not meet during the summer.  
Sylvan Glen is done and a ribbon cutting ceremony was held.  
 
Medi-Go:  No report  
 
Senior Program:  Carla handed out a copy of the senior program annual report for the fiscal 
year that ended June 30.  She noted that the number of seniors receiving the newsletter via 
email is up 36% to 375.  Attendance at the lunch program continues to decline - down 31% 
from last year.   We are now serving an average of 35 meals per day.  The sale of passes for 
single exercise classes is up 105% to 451 this year.  Creative Endeavors showed a 19% 
increase in sales.  There were 276 pieces of hospital equipment loaned out last year, up from 
180 last year.  The service is much appreciated.  
 
JoAnn Thompson asked if the pool staff could refrain from vacuuming the deck during their 
class as it makes it hard to hear the instructor.   Carla will pass this request on to the pool staff.     
 
OLHSA:  No report.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report  
 
Suggestion Box:  Exercise instructor Marilyn McCauly has resigned, and here was one 
suggestion that Therese, who is subbing for Marilyn this summer, be hired to take her place.  
Carla reported that Therese was approached about this, but she has taken a full time job and 
will not be available.  Eileen, a new instructor, has agreed to teach the class.  She conducted 
the class yesterday and was well received.  
 
 
Comments:   
 
David Ogg and other committee members would like the meetings moved back to room 302.   
Carla will take care of this. 
 
James Berar circulated an article about volunteers building a park in Birmingham. 
 
JoAnn Thompson reported that the Elf Shelf is looking for a new site since Troy High has 
become so expensive.    



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Sept. 7, 2006 

3 

 
David Ogg asked about Troy Daze, and Carla reported on the senior event and referred him to 
the senior newsletter for details. 
 
Mary Sarossy commented that she is glad to have the opportunity to be of service as a 
member of this committee. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



DATE:        September 7, 2006
TO:             Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of August 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
New 2 $5,115,000.00 $29,865.00
Add/Alter 5 $139,600.00 $1,673.00

Sub Total 7 $5,254,600.00 $31,538.00

COMMERCIAL
Fnd. New 2 $3,450,000.00 $20,440.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $452,000.00 $3,309.00
Completion (New) 1 $1,050,000.00 $7,395.00
Tenant Completion 1 $35,000.00 $390.00
Add/Alter 17 $1,254,050.00 $11,089.00

Sub Total 22 $6,241,050.00 $42,623.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 4 $635,832.00 $6,040.00
Add/Alter 36 $775,004.00 $9,163.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 8 $19,702.00 $620.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 3 $6,300.00 $205.00
Repair 1 $12,690.00 $236.00
Fire Repair 4 $467,772.00 $3,798.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $200.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 1 $1,500.00 $55.00

Sub Total 59 $1,918,800.00 $20,317.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 4 $584,600.00 $4,696.00
Add/Alter 2 $41,500.00 $584.00

Sub Total 6 $626,100.00 $5,280.00

MULTIPLE
Garage/Acc. Structure 4 $70,175.00 $1,091.00

Sub Total 4 $70,175.00 $1,091.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $50,000.00 $495.00

Sub Total 1 $50,000.00 $495.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $10,000.00 $215.00

Sub Total 1 $10,000.00 $215.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 33 $0.00 $3,700.00
Fences 17 $0.00 $275.00

Sub Total 50 $0.00 $3,975.00

TOTAL 150 $14,170,725.00 $105,534.00

PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF AUGUST 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 375 $3,750.00
Cert. of Occupancy 38 $4,261.85
Plan Review 137 $13,887.00
Microfilm 31 $324.00
Building Permits 150 $105,534.00
Electrical Permits 187 $13,310.00
Heating Permits 136 $7,615.00
Air Cond. Permits 69 $3,065.00
Plumbing Permits 126 $7,868.00
Storm Sewer Permits 15 $1,403.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 23 $904.00
Sewer Taps 11 $11,102.00

TOTAL 1298 $173,023.85

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF AUGUST 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 37 $185.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 24 $360.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 31 $31.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 3 $150.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 4 $40.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 1 $15.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 2 $20.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 28 $280.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 3 $45.00

TOTAL 25 $1,081.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2005 2005 2006 2006

JANUARY 93 $6,617,765.00 116 $7,273,163.00

FEBRUARY 133 $8,586,755.00 94 $6,659,691.00

MARCH 143 $19,405,253.00 127 $5,629,425.00

APRIL 234 $16,039,899.00 174 $5,766,996.00

MAY 229 $8,974,377.00 216 $11,290,598.00

JUNE 207 $14,432,280.00 218 $10,681,352.00

JULY 176 $7,490,327.00 198 $11,269,902.00

AUGUST 202 $13,132,327.00 150 $14,170,725.00

SEPTEMBER 207 $11,424,698.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 169 $12,606,760.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 137 $9,014,642.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 91 $13,489,338.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2021 $141,214,421.00 1293 $72,741,852.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2006

12 9 4 9 7 9 6 4
0

10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Sep 7, 2006 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF AUGUST 2006Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter SASCON INC 2950 ROCHESTER  200,000
Commercial, Add/Alter INTERIOR PARTNERSHIP GROUP INC 2595 BELLINGHAM  180,000
Commercial, Add/Alter BOGART-N-DIESON 1875 RESEARCH 200  152,000
Commercial, Add/Alter BOGART-N-DIESON 100 W BIG BEAVER 550  167,298

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  699,298

Commercial, Completion New KONA GRILL INC 30 E BIG BEAVER  1,050,000

Commercial, Completion NewTotal  1,050,000

Commercial, Fnd/Shell New BUSCEMI, PAUL & DAVE 3176 ROCHESTER  452,000

Commercial, Fnd/Shell NewTotal  452,000

Commercial, Foundation New REDICO 30 E BIG BEAVER  450,000
Commercial, Foundation New AUCH, GEORGE W. CO 3838 LIVERNOIS  3,000,000

Commercial, Foundation NewTotal  3,450,000

Industrial, New Building BLOOM GENERAL CONTRACTING 1814 MAPLELAWN  1,352,000
Industrial, New Building BLOOM GENERAL CONTRACTING 1816 MAPLELAWN  3,763,000

Industrial, New BuildingTotal  5,115,000

Total Valuation:  10,766,298Records  11



  
 

 
September 13, 2006 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance and Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Agenda Item – Final Reporting - BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb 

Auctioneering, LLC – July/August 2006 
 
SUMMARY 
In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for five (5) 
computers and three (3) laser cartridges, which were auctioned on-line through BidNet, the 
City’s e-procurement website, on July 7, 2006 and closed on July 30, 2006.  Four 
workstations were auctioned on-line, on July 31, 2006 and closed on August 13, 2006.   Six 
(6) vehicles were also auctioned through Mid-Thumb Auctions on July 22, 2006. 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS   SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME 
5 Computers, Laser Cartridges, & Workstations 226.05  
6 Vehicles and Misc. 25,758.00  
                                                              SUB-TOTAL:      $25,984.05  
    

 FEES:   
6% on Vehicles & Misc. Items (1,545.48)   
5%  (Computers & Workstations) & Fee  (11.30)   
   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:     ($1,556.78)  
Sales Tax - +6% (Computers & Workstations): 13.56   
Sales Tax (None on Vehicles):           0.00   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:             $13.56  
                                                      $24,440.83                                                       

 
BACKGROUND 
Included in the specifications for the auction contract is the ability of our auctioneer to take 
the City’s auction items to other auction locations. Mid-Thumb Auctioneering, LLC 
suggested using the St. Clair County Park in Port Huron, Michigan.  All transportation, 
reporting, and advertising are included in the auction fee.   
 
Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to 
use BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be 
considered.  BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus auction service 
for MITN (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is Purchasing’s official e-procurement website 
used for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a 
Purchasing goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 
 
 
Report and Communication – Auction Report – July & August 2006 
Prepared by Linda Bockstanz, Associate Buyer 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b







mccombca
Text Box
J-05







BRIEF SUMMARY OF PLAN PROVISIONS 
 

REGULAR RETIREMENT (no reduction factor for age) 
Eligibility - T.P.O.A., T.C.O.A.; Fire Staff Officers members:  25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service.  AFSCME 
Members:  Age 50 with 27 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service.  Classified or Exempt and General Clerical 
Members:  Age 50 with 27 years of service; or age 55 with 25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service.
Mandatory Retirement Age - None.
Annual Amount

 

Division Benefit Supplemental Benefit 
T.P.O.A. 2.80% * FAC * Service 1.00% * FAC * Over 25 Yrs  (75% max.) 
T.C.O.A. 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General, AFSCME 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General Classified/Exempt 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General Clerical 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
T.F.S.O.A. 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 

 

Type of Final Average Compensation - Highest 3 years out of last 10.
EARLY RETIREMENT (age reduction factor used) 

Eligibility - Age 55 with 10 years of service. 
Annual Amount – Computed as regular retirement benefit but reduced by 1/2% for each month by which retirement 
precedes age 60. 

DEFERRED RETIREMENT (vested benefits) 

Eligibility - 10 years of service.  Benefit payable at age 60. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement but based on credited service and final average compensation at 
termination. 

DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - No age or service requirement.  Workers’ compensation must be payable. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement.  Upon termination of workers’ compensation the benefit is recomputed to 
grant service credit for the period in receipt of workers’ compensation.  Minimum benefit is based on 10 years of credited 
service (66-2/3% of final average compensation for non-command/exempt public safety members, while in receipt of 
workers’ compensation). 

NON-DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - 5 years of service (10 years for Exempt and Classified, AFSCME, employees hired after 2/96, MAP 
employees hired after 9/22/95, T.F.S.O.A. employees). 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement, but with a minimum benefit based on 10 years of credited service. 

DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - No age or service requirement. 
Annual Amount – Widow’s benefit equal to regular retirement benefit actuarially reduced in accordance with a 100% 
joint and survivor election.  Minimum benefit is 25% (50% for Command Officers T.P.O.A. and T.F.S.O.A.) of final 
average compensation.  If no widow, children under 18 share equally in 25% (50% for Command Officers T.P.O.A.and 
T.F.S.O.A.) of final average compensation. 

NON-DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - 10 years service. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement but reduced in accordance with a 100% joint and survivor election. 
AUTOMATIC DEATH BENEFIT AFTER RETIREMENT:  None 
POST-RETIREMENT ADJUSTMENTS:  One time increases were granted in 1973, 1977, 1978, 1981, 1983, 1989 
and 1999. 
HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUM SUBSIDY:  Post-retirement health insurance premiums are subsidized as 
follows: 
T.F.S.O.A., T.C.O.A., T.P.O.A. - City pays a percentage of monthly premium up to 100% based on (4% x completed years 
of service).  Classified, Exempt, AFSCME, Clerical - City pays a percentage of monthly premium up to 100% based on 
(4% x completed years of service) or $400/month, whichever is greater. 
 
G: my documents\retirement board\retirement board of trustees rules & regs – rolls and reports\summary annual report to members 12-31-05.doc 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Retirement System 

SUMMARY ANNUAL REPORT TO MEMBERS 
DECEMBER 31, 2005 

 
Dear Retirement System Member: 
 
The Retirement System, which is managed by the Retirement Board, is designed 
to help you meet your financial needs should you become disabled, retire or die. 
 
The Retirement Board’s fiduciary responsibility to you is to supervise the general 
administration of the System and invest its assets. Under Act 485 of 1996 we are 
providing this Summary Annual Report. 
 
We have prepared this summary report to give you a brief overview of the 
Retirement System and how it operates. We hope you will find it useful and 
informative. However, a summary cannot cover all the details of the System, 
which is governed by the provisions of the City’s charter, the City’s retirement 
ordinance and the Retirement Board’s official rules and regulations. Additional 
information about the System and its financial operation is available in the City 
Manager’s office. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  

The Retirement Board Actuaries and Consultants 
City of Troy Retirement System  
 • Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company 
Martin F. Howrylak, City Council Member  
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager Auditors and Accountants 
John M. Lamerato, Finance Director  
Mark A. Calice, Citizen Trustee • Rehmann Robson 
Michael Geise, Trustee  
Thomas Houghton, Trustee  
Steven A. Pallotta, Trustee  
William R. Need, Ex-Officio  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 

Stock - 70% 

Bonds - 23% 

Real Estate - 2% 
Cash - 5%    

 

SUMMARY RESULTS OF ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
 
Your retirement system’s financial objective is to establish and receive 
contributions which will remain approximately level from year to year and will 
not have to be increased for future generations of taxpayers. Contribution levels 
are expressed in terms of percents of the city’s active member payroll. 
 
To determine an appropriate Employer contribution level for the ensuing year and 
to gauge how the system’s funding is meeting this fundamental objective, an 
independent firm of actuaries and employee benefit consultants, Gabriel, Roeder, 
Smith & Company, conducts annual actuarial valuations. 
 
These valuations are based on your System’s past experience, information about 
current participation and financial markets, and assumptions concerning the 
System’s future demographic and economic activity.  The results of the 
December 31, 2005 valuation, based on the established funding objective, are 
summarized below:     

           Fiscal Year 2006/07 
Employer Contribution Rates 

As a Percentage of Active Member Payroll 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Funded Status*                                                                             $ Millions 
 

• Actuarial accrued liabilities $113.3 
• Applied assets (market related value) $128.8 
• % funded 113.7% 

 
Actuary’s Opinion 
 
It is the actuary’s opinion that the required contribution rate determined by the 
most recent actuarial valuation is sufficient to meet the system’s funding 
objective, presuming continued receipt of required contributions when due. 
 
*Percent funded is for pension benefits only.  The City adopted a Health Care 
Trust Plan to provide for retiree health care effective July 1, 2005. 
 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT ASSET INFORMATION 
 
 

   Revenues & Expenses 
 

 2005 
  

  
  

Fund Balance - January 1 $166,362,959 

Revenues
 Member contributions $       309,731 
 Employer contributions 972,454 
 Investment income 2,995,153
 Total $    4,277,338 
  

  Expenses
 Benefit payments $    4,923,401 
 Refund of member contributions 2,613 
 Administrative expenses 53,247 
 Health Insurance Premiums       1,368,331
 Total $    6,347,592 
  
Fund Balance - December 31 $164,292,705    

 Contributions for General Public Safety 
Normal Cost of Benefits   
   Total 15.22% 22.62% 
   Member portion   1.22  3.69
   Employer portion 14.00 18.93 
Amortization of Unfunded Liability (9.03) (18.93)
Computed Employer Rate 4.97% 0.00% 

 

Investments 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The market rate of return on system assets for the year ended December 31, 
2005 was 4.83%, net after expenses. 


	AGENDA: September 18, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a\) Service Commendation – Charles Barne�


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, PA 110 of 2006, Zoning Ord

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment  (File Number: ZOTA 215-

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Ap�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�

	E-5 Rescind Partial Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Janitorial
	E-6 Application for Transfer of Class C-SDM License for Ruth
	E-7 Private Agreement for Beaumont Hospital Project No. 06.9
	E-8 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Ltd. v. City of Troy et

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Di
	F-2 Amendments to Chapter 42 – Flood Plain Management as Req

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – June 1, 2006
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – June 6, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Aug
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Aug
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – September 7, 

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\) Building Department – Permits Issued�
	b\) Purchasing Department – Final Report�

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted
	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Retirement System – Summary Annual Report to Members – 

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



